BRIGADE HOSPITALITY SERVICES LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2024-25




NOTICE

Notice is hereby given that the Twenty First Annual General Meeting of Brigade Hospitality
Services Limited will be held on Monday, August 11, 2025 at 11:00 a.m. at the Board Room, 30™
Floor, World Trade Center, Brigade Gateway Campus, 26/1, Dr. Rajkumar Road, Malleswaram -
Rajajinagar, Bangalore- 560055 to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. Toreceive, consider and adopt the Audited Balance Sheet as at 315" March, 2025 and Audited
Profit & Loss Account and the Cash Flow Statement for the financial year ended 315" March
2025 and the reports of the Board of Directors and the Auditors thereon.

"RESOLVED THAT the audited financial statements of the Company including the Balance
Sheet as at 315" March, 2025, the Profit & Loss Account and the Cash Flow Statement for
the year ended on that date, notes to financial statements, reports of the Board and Auditors'
thereon be and are hereby received, considered and adopted.”

2. To Declare final Dividend for the financial year 2024-25:

"RESOLVED THAT a final dividend of 5 per equity share (Rupees Five only) of X10/- each
fully paid up be and is hereby declared and paid out of the profits for the financial year
2024-2025."

3. To appoint the Director in place of Ms. Nirupa Shankar (DIN: 02750342) who retires by
rotation and being eligible, offers herself for re-appointment.

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 and other applicable provisions,
if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder (including any statutory
modification(s) or re-enactment thereof, for the time being in force), Ms. Nirupa Shankar
(DIN: 02750342) who retires by rotation and being eligible, offers herself for
re-appointment, be and is hereby re-appointed as Director of the Company, liable to retire by
rotation.

4. To appoint M/s. B.K. Ramadhyani & Co LLP, Chartered Accountants (FRN: 0028785/5200021)
as the Statutory Auditors of the Company and to authorise the board of directors to fix their
remuneration:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 139, 141, 142 and other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014, as amended from time to time (including any statutory modification(s) or re-
enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force) and pursuant to recommendation of Audit
Committee and the Board, approval of the Members of the Company be and is hereby accorded
for the appointment of M/s. B.K. Ramadhyani & Co LLP Chartered Accountants (FRN:



0028785/5200021) as Statutory Auditors of the Company for a term of five consecutive
years from the conclusion of this Twenty First Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of
Twenty Sixth Annual General Meeting of the Company on such remuneration as may be
recommended by the Audit Committee and finalized by the Board of Directors in consultation
with the Statutory Auditors

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors or Company Secretary of the Company,
be and are hereby severally authorised to do all such acts, deeds and things as may be
necessary, proper or expedient o give effect to this resolution.”.

Place: Bangalore By Order of the Board

Date: April 16, 2025 For Brigade Hospitality Services Limited
Sd/-

Registered Office Jayant B Manmadkar

29™ Floor, World Trade Center Company Secretary

Brigade Gateway Campus, 26/1,
Dr. Rajkumar Road
Malleswaram-Rajajinagar
Bangalore - 56005



NOTES:

1.

A member entitled to attend and vote is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote on his
/ her behalf and the proxy need not be a member of the company. Pursuant to the provisions
of Section 105 of the Companies Act, 2013, a person can act as a proxy on behalf of not more
than fifty members and holding in aggregate not more than ten percent of the total share
capital of the Company. Members holding more than ten percent of the total share capital of
the company may appoint a single person as proxy, who shall not act as proxy for any other
Member.

The instrument of proxy, in order to be effective, should be deposited at the Registered
Office of the Company duly completed and signed, not later than 48 hours before the
commencement of the meeting. A proxy form is annexed to this Notice.

Members / proxies should bring the duly filled Attendance Slip enclosed herewith to attend
the meeting.



DETAILS OF DIRECTOR(S) SEEKING APPOINTMENT/ RE-APPOINTMENT
AT THE 215" ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
{Pursuant to Secretarial Standards on General Meeting issued by the
Institute of Company Secretaries of India}

Name of the Director

Ms. Nirupa Shankar

Date of Birth

October 31, 1982

Age (in years)

42 years

Date of first appointment on the
Board

January 16, 2013

Brief Resume of the Director &
Qualifications

Ms. Nirupa Shankar has over 17 years of experience and has
been associated with Brigade Group since 2009, overseeing the
company’s hospitality, office and retail portfolios. She also
leads Public Relations (PR) and Innovation functions. She set up
Asid's first Real Estate Tech Accelerator, Brigade REAP.

She has previously worked as a Senior Business Analyst with
Ernst & Young LLP in New York, Washington DC, and North
Carolina.

Ms. Nirupa Shankar has a Bachelor's degree in Economics from
the University of Virginia and a Master's degree in Management
of Hospitality from Cornell University.

Inter-se relationship with any other
Directors or KMP of the Company

Ms. Nirupa Shankar is not related to any Directors or KMP of
the Company.

Directorships in other Companies

a) Brigade Enterprises Limited

b) SRP Prosperita Hotel Ventures Limited

¢) Brigade Infrastructure & Power Private Limited
d) Mysore Holdings Private Limited.

e) WTC Trades & Projects Private Limited

f) Brigade Hotel Ventures Limited

g) Brigade Flexible Office Spaces Private Limited
h) Zoiros Projects Private Limited

i) Brigade (Gujarat) Projects Private Limited

J) Venusta Ventures Private Limited

Committee positions held in Board

SI. Name of Name of the Position Held
No. Company Committee (Chairman
/Member)
1 Brigade Corporate Social Member
Enterprises Responsibility
Limited Committee
Committee of Member
Directors
Depositories Member
Committee
2. Committee of Chairperson
Directors




Corporate Social Chairperson
Brigade Hotel ReCSPOHS.ib””Y
Ventures ommittee
- Risk Management Member
Limited .
Committee
Stakeholder’s Member
Relationship
Committee
Brigade Audit Committee Member
Infrastructur Nomination and Chairperson
e & Power Pvt. Remuneration
Ltd. Committee
Brigade Corporate Social Member
Hospitality Responsibility
Services Committee
Limited
SRP Nomination and Member
Prosperita Remuneration
Hotel Committee
Ventures
Limited
Mysore Corporate Social Member
Holdings Responsibility
Private Committee
Limited
WTC Trades Corporate Social Member
& Projects Responsibility
Private Committee
Limited Audit Committee Member
Nomination and Chairperson
Remuneration
Committee
Brigade Audit Committee Member
(6ujarat) Nomination and Member
Projects Remuneration
Private Committee
Limited

No. of equity shares held in the
Company including shareholding as a
beneficial owner

100 Equity Shares (Joint Shareholding)

No. of Board Meetings attended

Ms. Nirupa Shankar has attended 4 Board Meetings out of 5
Board Meetings held during the financial year 2024-25.

Terms and conditions of appointment/
re-appointment

Ms. Nirupa Shankar retires by rotation at the Twenty First
Annual General Meeting and being eligible, offers herself for
re-appointment

Remuneration proposed to be paid

Not applicable




BRIGADE HOSPITALITY SERVICES LIMITED
CIN: U55101KA2004PLC034060
Regd. Off.: 29™ Floor, World Trade Center, Brigade Gateway Campus,
26/1, Dr. Rajkumar Road, Malleswaram-Rajajinagar, Bangalore 560 055

Twenty First Annual General Meeting on Monday, August 11, 2025 at 11:00 a.m.

ATTENDANCE SLIP
(To be handed over at the entrance of the Meeting Hall)

CLID/ Folio No.
DPID. : No. of Shares held:

I/We certify that I/ We am/ are a Registered Shareholder/Proxy for the Registered
Shareholder of the Company. I/We hereby record my/ our presence at the Twenty first Annual
General Meeting of the Company being to be held on Monday, August 11, 2025 at 11:00 a.m. at the
Board Room, 30™ Floor, World Trade Center, Brigade Gateway Campus, 26/1, Dr. Rajkumar Road,
Malleswaram-Rajajinagar, Bangalore- 560 055 and at any adjournment thereof.

Name of the Member/Proxy Signature of Member / Proxy
(in Block Letters )

Notes: A member/proxy wishing to attend the meeting must fill up this Attendance Slip and hand
it over at the entrance. If you intend to appoint a proxy, please complete the proxy form below
and deposit it at the Company's Registered Office atleast 48 hours before the meeting.



BRIGADE HOSPITALITY SERVICES LTD.
CIN: U55101KA2004PLC034060
Regd. Off. : 29™ Floor, World Trade Center, Brigade Gateway Campus,
26/1, Dr. Rajkumar Road, Malleswaram-Rajajinagar, Bangalore 560 055

Twenty First Annual General Meeting on Monday, August 11, 2025 at 11:00 a.m.

FORM NO. MGT- 14- PROXY FORM
[Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

Name of the member(s):

Registered address:

E-mail Id:

Folio No/ Client Id:

DP Id:

I/We, being the member(s) of ...................... Shares of Brigade Hospitality Services Limited,
hereby appoint:

1. Name
Address
E-mail ID

Signature et ns e et e or failing him

2. Name
Address
E-mail ID

Signature ettt s s senene or failing him

3. Name
Address
E-mail ID
Signature

... or failing him

as my/our proxy o attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the Twenty first
Annual General Meeting of the Company, to be held on Monday, August 11, 2025 at 11:00 a.m. the
Board Room, 30™ Floor, World Trade Center, Brigade Gateway Campus, 26/1 Dr. Rajkumar Road,



Malleswaram-Rajajinagar, Bangalore - 560055 and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such
resolutions as are indicated below:

Resolution Resolutions Vote
Number
For | Against
Ordinary Business
1 Adoption of Annual Accounts and Reports thereon
for the financial year ended 31" March, 2025
2 To Declare Final Dividend for the Financial Year
2024-25
3 Re-appointment  of ~ Ms.  Nirupa  Shankar
(DIN: 02750342), as a Director liable to retire by
rotation
4. To appoint /s. B.K. Ramadhyani & Co LLP, Chartered
Accountants as the Statutory Auditors of the
Company
Signed this AFfix
Revenue
Stamp
Signature of Shareholder Signature of Proxy holder(s)

Note: This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at
the Registered Office of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of
the Meeting.



Route Map to the Twenty First Annual General Meeting
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BOARD'S REPORT

Dear Members,
We have pleasure in presenting the Twenty First Annual Report on business and operations of the

Company together with the Audited Statement of Accounts for the financial year ended 31°" March
2025.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS:
The financial highlights of the Company for the year ended 315" March 2025 are as follows:

(Amount in Rs. Lakhs)

Particulars 2024-25 2023-24

Total Income 4,924 4,643
Total Expenditure 3,686 3,558
Profit before exceptional items and tax 1,238 1,085
Exceptional Items 418 -
Profit/ (Loss) before tax 820 1,085
Provision for: Current Tax 317 315

Deferred Tax Charge/Credit (34) (13)

Tax Expense - Prior Year 6) 3
Net Profit/(Loss) after Tax 543 781
Other Comprehensive Income 12 (10)
Total Comprehensive Income/ (Loss) for the year 555 771

FINANCIAL OVERVIEW:

During the year under review, your Company has achieved a revenue of Rs. 4,924 Lakhs as against
Rs. 4,643 lakhs in the previous year an increase by 6.05%. This is due to the overall growth in the
hospitality sector. The total expenditure for the year ended 315" March 2025 has been Rs. 3,686 Lakhs
as against Rs. 3,557 lakhs in the previous year, an increase by 3.63%. The increase in expenditure is
due to the result of increased business during the year. The total comprehensive income for the year
ended 31°" March 2025 stood at Rs. 555 Lakhs as compared to Rs. 771 Lakhs in the previous year ended
31°" March 2024.

Currently your Company has four clubs and two convention centers under operations. The Consolidated
Income from Rooms Rentals, Restaurants & Banquets, Hall Rentals and Subscription Charges stood at
Rs. 4,680 Lakhs. Overall, the gross operating profit for the year ended 315" March 2025 stood at
Rs. 1,109 Lakhs.

HOLDING/ SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES:

The Company is a Wholly Owned Subsidiary of Brigade Enterprises Limited.




Celebrations Private Limited is a Wholly owned subsidiary of the Company as per the Companies Act,
2013.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES:

A statement containing the salient features of the financial statements of subsidiary and associates
as required in Form AOC-1 is attached as Annexure-1 to this Report.

DIVIDEND:

The Board of Directors of the Company have recommended a final dividend of Rs. 5 per equity
share (50%) of Rs. 10/- each which is subject to approval of the Members in the ensuing Annual
General Meeting of the Company. The dividend, if approved by the members will involve a cash
outflow of Rs. 5,00,00,000 (Rupees Five Crore Only) subject to deduction of applicable taxes.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES

The Company has not transferred the portion of profit and loss account to reserves during the year
2024-25.

FIXED DEPOSITS:

The Company has not accepted any deposits in terms of Chapter V of the Companies Act, 2013 read
with the Companies (Acceptance of Deposit) Rules, 2014, during the year under review. Accordingly, no
amount is outstanding as on the balance sheet date.

SHARE CAPITAL:

There has been no change in the Share Capital of the Company during the year.

The Authorized Share capital of the Company is Rs. 30,00,00,000 (Rupees Thirty Crore Only) divided
into 1,00,00,000 (One Crore) Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each and 20,00,000 (Twenty Lakhs) Preference
Shares of Rs. 100 each .

The paid-up share capital of the Company is Rs. 10,00,00,000 (Rupees ten crores only) divided into
1,00,00,000 (One crore only) Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each.

DEBENTURES:

During the year under review, the Company has not issued any Debentures. As on date, the Company
does not have any outstanding Debentures.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS:

The Board of Directors of the Company comprises of 5 (Five) Directors of which 4 (four) are Non-
Executive Directors and 1 (One) is Independent Director.



Sl. No. Name of the Director Designation
1 Mr. Mohan Parvatikar Independent Director
2 Mr. M S Ravindra Non- Executive Director
3 Ms. Nirupa Shankar Non- Executive Director
4 Mr. Amar Shivram Mysore Non- Executive Director
5 Mr. Vineet Verma Non- Executive Director

The Independent Director has given declaration that he meets the criteria of independence as laid
down under Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013.

During the year, Mr. Balaram Menon, Independent Director relinquished his Directorship from the
Board w.e.f 16™ June, 2024 due to untimely and sad demise. Further, Mr. Mohan Parvatikar completed
his second term as Independent Director on 23" April, 2025, due to which he has ceased to be Director
of the Company w.e.f. 23" April, 2025

The Board places on record its appreciation Yo Mr. Balaram Menon and Mr. Mohan Parvatikar for their
contribution to the growth of the Company during their tenure of directorship in the Company.

In accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company and the provisions of Section 152(6)(e)
of the Companies Act, 2013, Ms. Nirupa Shankar (DIN: 02750342) Director of the Company will
retire by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and being eligible, offers herself for
reappointment.

None of the Directors of the Company are disqualified under Section 164(2) of the Companies Act,
2013.

BOARD MEETINGS:

During the year under review, the Board of Directors of the Company met 5 (Five) times on the
following dates:

Dates on which Board Meetings Total Strength of the Board No of Directors Present
were Held

24™ April, 2024 6 (Six) 6 (Six)

19™ July, 2024 5 (Five) 5 (Five)

23" October, 2024 5 (Five) 4 (Four)

16™ December, 2024 5 (Five) 4 (Four)

17™ January, 2025 5 (Five) 3 (Three)

ATTENDANCE OF DIRECTORS AT BOARD MEETINGS AND ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING:

The Board of Directors of the Company have attended the Board Meeting & the 20™ Annual General
Meeting as per the following details:



Name of the Director Board meetings attended in | Attendance in the
the financial year | 20™ Annual General Meeting
2024-25 held on 15™ July, 2024

Ms. Nirupa Shankar 4 (Four) Yes

Mr. Amar Mysore 5 (Five) Yes

Mr. Vineet Verma 4 (Four) Yes

Mr. M.S. Ravindra 3 (Three) Yes

Mr. P. Balaram Menon 1 (One) No

Mr. Mohan Parvatikar 5 (Five) Yes

AUDIT COMMITTEE:

During the year 2024-25, the Audit Committee met 4 (Four) times. The dates on which the said
meetings were held are as follows:

24™ April, 2024
19™ July, 2024
23 October, 2024
17 January, 2025

The composition of the Audit Committee and the details of meetings attended by its members are
given below:

sl. Name of the Directors Designation No. of Committee Meetings during the
No. year 2024-25
Held Attended
1 Mr. Mohan Parvatikar Chairman 4 (Four) 4 (Four)
2 Mr. M. S. Ravindra Member 4 (Four) 3 (Three)
3 Mr. Vineet Verma Member 4 (Four) 2 (Two)

* Mr. P Balaram Menon has attended the Audit Committee Meeting held on 24™ April, 2024
The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary of the Committee.
NOMINATION & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE:

During the year under review, the Nomination & Remuneration Committee met 3 (Three) times. The
dates on which the said meetings were held are as follows:

19™ July, 2024
16™ December, 2024
17 January, 2025

The composition of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee and the details of meetings attended
by its members are given below:



Name of the Designation No. of Committee Meetings during the year
Committee Member 2024-25
Held Attended
Mr. Mohan Parvatikar Chairman 3 (Three) 3 (Three)
Mr. M. S. Ravindra Member 3 (Three) 2 (Two)
Mr. Vineet Verma Member 3 (Three) 1 (One)

The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary of the Committee.
CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE:

The provisions relating to Corporate Social Responsibility are applicable to the Company as on
31°" March 2025. During the year the Company has made a contribution of Rs. 13.38 Lakhs.

The disclosures as required under Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8(1) of the
Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 is appended as Annexure-2 to this
Report. During the year under review, the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee met on

20™ January, 2025. The details of meetings attended by its members are given below:

Name of the Designation No. of Committee Meetings during the year
Committee Member 2024-25
Held Attended
Mr. Vineet Verma Chairman 1 (One) 1 (One)
Mr. Mohan Parvatikar Member 1 (One) 1 (One)
Ms. Nirupa Shankar Member 1 (One) 0

The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary of the Committee.
POLICY ON DIRECTORS APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION:

The Company has adopted the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for appointment/ re-appointment
and payment of remuneration to Directors and Key Managerial Personnel. The Directors of the Company
are appointed by the members at Annual General Meetings in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder.

BOARD EVALUATION:

Annual evaluation of the performance of the Board, its Committees and of individual Directors of the
Company for the Financial Year 2024-25 has been made as per the provisions of Companies Act, 2013.

In the Nomination and Remuneration Committee Meeting held on 17™ January, 2025, performance
of the Board as a whole and the performance of non-independent directors was carried out.
Performance evaluation of the independent director has been done by the entire board excluding
the independent director being evaluated.

The criteria for evaluation of performance of Directors and Board/ its committees is based on
the certain parameters like attendance, interpersonal relation with other directors, etc.



DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:
The Board of Directors hereby confirm that:

a) in the preparation of the annual financial statements for the year ended 315" March, 2025, the
applicable accounting standards have been followed along with proper explanation relating to
material departures;

b) the Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit of the Company
for that period:;

c) the Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets
of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d) the annual financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis;

e) there are proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws were in
place and were adequate and operating effectively.

KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:

Mr. Jayant Bhalchandra Manmadkar was appointed as the Chief Financial Officer of the Company w.e.f
19™ July, 2024 post resignation of Mr. Atul Goyal on 16™ February, 2024.

Further, Mr. P Om Prakash, Company Secretary, resigned from the position of Company Secretary
w.e.f 19™ July, 2024. Accordingly, Mr. Jayant Bhalchandra Manmadkar was appointed as the Company
Secretary of the Company w.e.f 16™ December, 2024.

Mr. Jayant Bhalchandra Manmadkar, Company Secretary and Chief Financial Officer and Mr. Gurmeet
Singh, Manager are the Key Managerial Personnel in accordance with the provisions of Section 203 of
the Companies Act, 2013.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES:

There are no employees drawing remuneration in excess of the limits prescribed in Section 134 read
with the Rule 5(2) & 5(3) of Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules,
2014 of the Companies Act, 2013.

STATUTORY AUDITORS:

The Statutory Auditor of the Company, Mr. E S Jairam, Chartered Accountant with Membership
No. 200533 will complete his present term at the conclusion of the ensuing Annual General Meeting.
The Board has recommended the appointment of M/s. B.K. Ramadhyani & Co LLP Chartered
Accountants (FRN: 002878S/5200021) as Statutory Auditors of the Company, for a period of



5 years from the conclusion of the ensuing Annual General Meeting until the conclusion of the
Twenty Sixth Annual General Meeting.

The Auditors have confirmed their eligibility and qualification required under the Act for holding the
office as Auditors of the Company.

There are no qualifications or adverse remarks in the Statutory Auditors' Report for the financial
statements for the year ended 31" March 2025 which require any explanation from the Board of
Directors.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS:

Details of Loans, Guarantees and Investments covered under the provisions of Section 186 of the
Companies Act, 2013 are given in the notes to the Financial Statements.

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES:

The related party transactions entered during the financial year 2024-25 as detailed in the notes to
accounts of the financial Statements which were carried at arm’s length basis and in the normal course
of business.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS:

There were no material changes and commitments for the period under review, which affects the
financial position of the company.

SIGNIFICANT OR MATERIAL ORDERS:

During the financial year under review, no significant and material orders were passed by the regulators
or courts or tribunals impacting the going concern status and the Company's operations in the future.

ANNUAL RETURN:

Pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013, a copy of the Annual Return of the Company
for the financial year ended 315" March 2025 is uploaded on the holding company's website under the
following link: www.brigadegroup.com.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL SYSTEM:

The Company has adequate internal financial control systems in place with reference to the financial
statements.

During the year under review, these controls were evaluated and no significant weakness was identified
either in the design or operation of the controls.



RISK MANAGEMENT:

The Board of Directors and Audit Committee have been entrusted with the responsibility for
establishing policies to monitor and evaluate risk management systems of the Company. As a part of
their scope, M/s. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu India LLP, Internal Auditors of the Company undertake
the evaluation of processes in different departments/units of the Company and the same is presented
to the Audit Committee/ Board of Directors on a quarterly basis.

The business risks identified are reviewed by the Audit Committee and a detailed action plan to
mitigate identified risks is drawn up and its implementation monitored. The key risks and mitigation
actions will also be placed before the Board of Directors of the Company on a periodic basis.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS
AND OUTGO:

A. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY:

The Company is engaged in service sector, has limited scope for energy conservation. Emphasis is being
laid on employing techniques which result in conservation of energy. At the workplace emphasis is more
on installation of energy efficient lights and using natural light to a maximum extent.

B. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION: NIL
C. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO:

During the year under review, the Company has incurred foreign currency expenditure of Rs. 1,52,020/-
and there was foreign exchange earnings of Rs. 76,73,888/-

HUMAN RESOURCES:

Many initiatives have been taken to support business through organizational efficiency, process change
support and various employee engagement programs. Your Company has currently 257 employees. A
significant effort has also been undertaken to develop leadership as well as technical/functional
capabilities in order to meet future talent requirements.

DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION,
PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

Brigade Enterprises Limited, the Holding Company has framed a policy for Prevention of Sexual
Harassment in the organization. The policy is applicable for all Companies in the Group. The Holding
Company has constituted "Complaints Redressal Committee” for prevention and redressal of complaints
on sexual harassment of women at workplace in accordance with the Sexual Harassment of Women at
Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition, and Redressal) Act, 2013 and relevant rules thereunder. During
the period under review, there were no such instances reported in the Company.

DISCLOSURES:

e Company has complied with all applicable mandatory Secretarial Standards issued by the
Institute of Company Secretaries of India for the financial year ended 315" March 2025.



o Pursuant to Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company is not required to maintain
any cost records.

¢ No frauds were reported by the Auditors as specified under Section 143 of the Companies
Act 2013 for the period ended 315" March, 2025.

e There is no change in the nature of the business of the Company.
o There are no differential voting rights shares issued by the Company.
e There were no sweat equity shares issued by the Company.

e There are no Corporate Insolvency proceedings initiated against the company under Insolvency
and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (IBC).

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS:

The Directors wish to place on record their appreciation and sincere thanks to all the stakeholders for
the continued support and patronage.

By order of the Board
For Brigade Hospitality Services Limited

Sd/- Sd/-
Vineet Verma Nirupa Shankar

Place: Bangalore Director Director
Date: 16™ April, 2025 DIN: 06362115 DIN: 02750342



Annexure-1
Form AOC-1

(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts)

Rules, 2014)

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries/associate

companies/joint ventures

Part "A”: Subsidiaries

(Amount in Rs Lakhs)

Name of the Subsidiary Celebrations Private Limited
Reporting period 2024-25
Reporting currency INR
Share capital 30
Total Assets 33.06
Total Liabilities 33.06
Investments -
Turnover -
Profit/Loss before Taxation (1.54)
Provision for Taxation -
Profit/Loss after Taxation (1.54)
Other Comprehensive Income -
Total Comprehensive Income -
Proposed Dividend -

% of Shareholding 100%

Notes:

1. Name of subsidiary which is yet to commence the operations: NA
2. Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year: NA

Place: Bangalore
Date: 16™ April 2025

By order of the Board
For Brigade Hospitality Services Limited

Sd/- Sd/-
Vineet Verma Nirupa Shankar

Director Director
DIN: 06362115 DIN: 02750342
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1.

Annexure 2

CSR Initiatives undertaken by the Company during the financial year 2023-24

Brief outline of Company's CSR Policy including overview of projects or programs proposed
to be undertaken and a reference to the web-link to the CSR Policy and projects or
programs:

The Company has in place a Corporate Social Responsibility Committee which will monitor the
CSR Policy in accordance with Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Corporate Social
Responsibility (CSR) Rules, 2014 together with Schedule VIT of the Companies Act, 2013.

Activities of CSR Committee includes the following:

i)

iii)

iv)

vi)

vii)

viii)

Eradicating hunger, poverty and malnutrition, promoting preventive health care including
preventive health care and sanitation including contribution to the Swach Bharat Kosh
set-up by the Central Government for the promotion of sanitation and making available
safe drinking water;

Promoting education, including special education and employment enhancing vocation skills
especially among children, women, elderly and the differently abled and livelihood
enhancement projects;

promoting gender equality, empowering women, setting up homes and hostels for women
and orphans; setting up old age homes, day care centres and such other facilities for
senior citizens and measures for reducing inequalities faced by socially and economically
backward groups;

ensuring environmental sustainability, ecological balance, protection of flora and fauna,
animal welfare, agroforestry, conservation of natural resources and maintaining quality
of soil, air and water;

Protection of national heritage, art and culture including restoration of buildings and sites
of historical importance and works of art; setting up public libraries: promotion and
development of traditional arts and handicrafts;

Measures for the benefit of armed forces veterans, war widows and their dependents;

Training to promote rural sports, nationally recognised sports, Paralympic sports and
Olympic sports;

Contribution to the Prime Minister's National Relief Fund or Prime Minister's Citizen
Assistance and Relief in Emergency Situations Fund (PM CARES Fund) or any other fund
set up by the Central Government for socio-economic development and relief and welfare
of the Scheduled Castes, the Scheduled Tribes, other backward classes, minorities and
women;

ix) (@) Contribution to incubators or research and development projects in the field of science,

technology, engineering and medicine, funded by the Central Government or State

11



ix)

Government or Public Sector Undertaking or any agency of the Central Government or
State Government; and

(b) Contributions to public funded Universities; Indian Institute of Technology (IITs);
National Laboratories and autonomous bodies established under Department of Atomic
Energy (DAE); Department of Biotechnology (DBT); Department of Science and
Technology (DST). Department of Pharmaceuticals; Ministry of Ayurveda, Yoga and
Naturopathy, Unani, Siddha and Homoeopathy (AYUSH):; Ministry of Electronics and
Information Technology and other bodies, namely Defence Research and Development
Organisation (DRDO); Indian Council of Agricultural Research (ICAR); Indian Council of
Medical Research (ICMR) and Council of Scientific and Industrial Research (CSIR),
engaged in conducting research in science, technology, engineering and medicine aimed at
promoting Sustainable Development Goals (SD6s).]

x) Rural development projects;

xi) slum area development:

xii) disaster management, including relief, rehabilitation and reconstruction activities.

2. The composition of the CSR Committee:

The Composition of the CSR Committee is as follows:

Sl. | Name of the Committee | Designation Number of Number of
No. | Members Meetings of CSR | meetings of CSR
Committee held | Committee
during the year | attended during
the year
1 | Mr. Vineet Verma Chairman 1 1
2 | Mr. Mohan Parvatikar Member 1 1
3 | Ms. Nirupa Shankar Member 1 0

3. Web-link where Composition of CSRcommittee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved by the

board are disclosed on the website of the company.

N.A

Details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule

8of the Companies (Corporate Social responsibilityPolicy) Rules, 2014, if applicable (attach
the report).

N.A.

5. Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the
Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required for set
off for the financial year, if any:
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Sl. Financial Year Amount  available for | Amount required to be set-
No. set-off from preceding | off for the financial year,
financial years (in Rs) if any (in Rs)
1 2023-24
2022-23
2021-22 N.A.
TOTAL

(a) Average Net Profit of the Company as per section 135(5): Rs. 669.05 Lakhs
(b) Two percent of average het profit of the Company as per Section 135(5):Rs.13.38 Lakhs
(c) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the

previous financial years: N.A

(d) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any: N.A.
(e) Amount unspent for the previous financial year, if any: NIL
(f) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (b+c-d): Rs. 13.38 Lakhs

7. (a) Amount spent on CSR Projects (both Ongoing Project and other than Ongoing
Project): Rs. 14 Lakhs
(b) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: NIL
(c) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable.: NIL
(d) Total amount spent for the Financial Year [(a)+(b)+(c)]. : Rs. 14 Lakhs

(e ) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year:

Amount Unspent (in Rs.)
Total Amount Spent "Totql” Amount transferred | Amount transferred fo any fund specified
for the Financial | to U:sz:.n; (ig'; (2§°°“m @S | under Schedule VII as per second proviso to
year. per sectio section 135(5)
(in Rs.)
Amount | Date of Name of Amount Date of
transfer the Fund transfer
Rs. 14 Lakhs NIL NIL
(f) Excess amount for set-off, if any:
Sl. Particulars Amount
No. (in Rs. lakhs)
(i) | Two percent of average net profit of the company 13.38
as per section 135(5)
(ii) | Total amount spent for the Financial Year 14
(iii) | Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)] 062
(iv) | Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or -
programmes or activities of the previous financial
years, if any
(v) | Amount available for set off in succeeding financial -
years [(iii)-(iv)]
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8. (a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years:

Sl. | Preceding | Amount Amount Amount transferred to any fund | Amount
No. | Financial | transferred spent in the | specified under Schedule VII as per | remaining
Year. to Unspent | reporting section 135(6), if any. to be

CSR Account | Financial Name of spent in
under Year (in Rs.) | theFund | Amount | Date of the
section 135 (in Rs) transfer succeeding
(6)(in Rs.) financial
years.
(in Rs.)
NIL

9. Whether any capital assets have been created or acquired through Corporate Social

Responsibility amount spent in the Financial Year: NO

If yes, enter the number of Capital assets created/ acquired: NA

Furnish the details relating to such asset(s) so created or acquired through
Corporate Social Responsibility amount spent in the Financial Year:

S | Short Pincode Date of | Amount | Details of entity/ Authority/
I particulars of | of the creation | of CSR | beneficiary of the registered
. the property | property amount owner
N | or asset(s) or spent
o [including asset(s)
complete
address and
location of the
property]
(ORIG) (3) 4) () (6)
CSR Name | Registered
Registration address
Number, if
applicable
NIL

(All the fields should be captured as appearing in the revenue record, flat no, house no,

Municipal Office/Municipal Corporation/ Gram panchayat are to be specified and also the
area of the immovable property as well as boundaries)

10. In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so

created or acquired through CSR spent in the financial year (asset-wise details): N.A.

(a) Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s).
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(b) Amount of CSR spent for
creation or acquisition of
capital assets.

(c) Details of the entity or public
authority or beneficiary under
whose name such capital asset is
registered, their address etc.

(d) Provide details of the capital
asset(s) created or acquired
(including complete address and
location of the capital asset).

11. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit
as per section 135(5): N.A.

For Brigade Hospitality Services Limited

Sd/-
Director and Chairman of CSR Committee

Place: Bangalore
Date: 16™ April 2025
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JAIRAM E.S.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANT

‘SRUTY, 80 SHANKARA PARK, SHANKAR MUTT PARALLEL ROAD, BENGALURU- 560 004. TEL : 080- 26625968, 26671803.
EMAIL : sensexca@gmail.com

INDIA

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Brigade Hospitality Services Limited
Report on Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the standalone Ind AS financial statements of Brigade Hospitality Services Limited (“the
Company”) which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, the Statement of Profit & Loss,
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Cash flow Statements for the year then ended, notes to Ind AS
financial statements including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner
so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025, of the profits, changes in equity and its
cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis of Opinion:

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditi ng (SAs) specified under section 143(10)
of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”). Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described
in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Ind AS
financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

a
Key Audit Matters:

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the Ind AS financial statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2025. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the Ind AS financial statements as a whole, and
in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

There were no key audit matter that need to be reported.




Other information [“information Other than the Financial $tatements and Auditor’s Report Thereon”]:

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the Board Report but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon,

Qur opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the cther information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the sudit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information; we are required to report that fact, We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibility for Standalone ind AS Financial Statements:

The Company’s Board of Directors is respansible for the matters stated in section 134(5} of the Act, with
respect o the preparation of these standatone ind AS financial staterments that give a true and fair view of
the financial position, financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the indian Accounting
Standards specified under section 132 of the Act. This responsibility alse includes maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate implementation and maintenance of accounting policies; making judgments and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adeguate internal
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give atrue
and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to gaing concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements:

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Standalone Ind AS financial
statements as 2 whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high leve! of assurance but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis cf these financial statements.




As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism through the audit. We also:

¢ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks and
abtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resuiting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as Traud may involve coilusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal contro! relevant o the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3){1) of the Act, we are
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal
financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluste the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management,

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Company to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are reguired to draw attention in our
auditor's report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Cur conclusions are based on the audit evidence

obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Company ¢ cease to continue as a going concern,

¢ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consclidated financial statements,
inciucing the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies ininternal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and t¢ communicate with them ail relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards,




Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Reguirements:

1. Asrequired by the Com panies (Auditor’s Report} Order, 2020 (“the Order”}, issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section {11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we
give in the Annexure ~ &, 2 statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Grder,
to the extent applicable.

-
£

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

aj

We have sought and obtained afl the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

I our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those hooks except as referred in para {hilv)
below:.

The Balance Sheet, the Staterment of Profit and Loss, statement of changes In eguity and
the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of
account.

in our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act.

Cn tne basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31,
2025 taken on record by the Board of Directors, nene of the directors i disgualified as on
that date from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2} of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controts over financial reporting of
the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report
in “Annexure - B

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Repart in accordance with
requirement of Section 197 {16) of the Act, as amended:

in our opinion and to the best of our infermation and according to the explanations given
to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in
accorgance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best
of our information and according to the explanations given to us:




o
2

The Company has disclosed its pending litigations which would impact its
financial position in note 29(c} of the Ind AS financial statements.

The Company did not have any long-term contracts as required under the
applicable law or accounting standards, and siso not entered into gy
derivative contracts, accordingly no provision is required to be made in respect
of material foreseeable losses.

There were nc amounts which were required to be transferred to the fnvestor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

Based on the information and explanation provided and as represented to us
by the management to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have
been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company to orin any
other person(s) or entity{ies), including foreign entities {“intermediaries”},
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or ctherwise, that the
Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
company {“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the
like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

Based on the information and explanation provided and as represented to us
by the management 1o the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have
been received by the company from any person{s) or entity{ies), including
foreign entities {(“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded
inwriting or otherwise, that the company shall, whether, directly or indirectly,
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”} or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonahble and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has
caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clayse {t) and {ii) of
Rule 11{e), as provided under {a) and (b) above, contain any material
misstatement,




{1} As stated in note 29 to the financial statements, the Board of Directors
of the Company has proposed final dividend for the vear which is
subject to the approval of the members at the ensuing Annual General
Meeting. The dividend declared is in accardance with section 173 of the
Act to the extent it applies to declaration of dividend.

{ii} Attention is drawn to note 13 to the Ind AS Financial Statements
regarding payment of proposed final dividend for the previous vear. In
respect of the said dividend paid during the year by the Company,
except for not transferring amount of dividend to separate bank
account as specified in sub-section {4) of section 123 of the Act, the
payment of dividend is in accordance with section 123 of the
Companies Act 2013 and the payment of dividend has been made
within 5 days of declaration of dividends.

{vi) The Company uses multiple accounting softwares {7IDS™ and ‘Tally Prime™ ’)
for maintenance of its books of account for the financial year ended March 31,
2025 covering all transactions. We understand, based on examination,
including certain test checks and discussions with the management, we are of
the opinion that the accounting software has a feature of recording audit trail
(edit iog) facility and the same operated throughout the year for ali relevant
transactions recorded In that sofiware,
Further, during the course of our audit we did not come gCross any instance of
the audit trall feature being tampered with.

Based on our examination, including certain test checks and discussions with
the management, audit trail has been preserved by the Company as per the
statutory requirements for record retention so far as it appears from our
examination.

Membership No, 200533
UDIN: 5200533 & M AN 05490

Place: Bangalore
Bate: Aprif 15, 2025




ANNEXURE-A REFERRED TO IN PARAGRAPH 1 UNDER THE HEADING “REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND
REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS” OF OUR REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF BRIGADE HOSPITALITY SERVICES
LIVIITED.,

(i}

(i)

(it}

a)

Cy

A} The Company has maintsined proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant 2nd Eguipment and relevant details
of right-of-use assets,

B} The Company does not have intangible assets and hence this clause is not applicable.

Management during the year has physically verified Froperty, Plant and Equipment as per
the phased program of physical verification. We are of the opinion that it is conducted at
teasonable intervals, We have heen informed by the management that the discrepancies
noticed on such verification were not materiat and the same has been properly dealt with in
the books of account.

The titie deeds of ail immovakie properties {other than properties where the company is the
lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee) disclosed in the
financlal statements are heid in the name of the Company as at the balance sheet date.

The company has not re-valued its Property, Plant ang Equipment {including Right of Use
assets) or intangible assets or both during the year and accordingly provisions of clause 3{i){d)
is not applicable to the Company,

According to the information and explanation given to us by the Compeny, there are no
proceedings inftiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami praperty
under the Benami Transactions {Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988} and rules made
thereunder and accordingly provisions of clause 3(i}{e) is not applicable to the Company.

Management during the year has physically verified [nventory as per a phased program of
physical verification. We are of the opinion that it is conducted at reasonable intervals. We
have been informed by the management that the discrepancies noticed on such verification
were not material and the same has been properly dealt with in the books of account,

The Company has not been sanctioned, any working capital limits in excess of five crore
rupees, in aggregate, during any point of time of the year from banks or financial institutions
on the basis of security of current assets. Accordingly, clause 3{ii}(b) of the Order is not
applicahle.

The Company has not made any investments in, provided any guarantee or security or granted any
loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited

Liability Partnerships or any other parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of
the Act during the year. Accordingly, clause 3{itl} of the Order is not applicable.




{iv},

{vi].

{vii).

Based on the informaticn and explanations given to us

, the Company has not granted any ioans,

given guarantees and securities as referred in the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Act. The
investments made by the Company are within the limits as specified under Sec 186 of the Act.

The Company has not accepted any deposits as applicable under the directives issued by the
Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of sections 73 t¢ 76 or any other provisions of the Act and
rules framed under, Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3{v) of the said Order are not applicable.

To the best of our knowledge and explanations given ic us, the Central Government has not
prescribed the maintenance of cost records under sub-section {1} of section 148 of the Act,
Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3{vi} of the said Order are not applicable.

a) According to the records of the Company, it is generally regular in depositing undisputed
statutory dues including provident fund, employees’ state insurance, Goods and Service Tax
and any other statutory dues to the appropriate suthorities as at March 31, 2025, There are
no undisputed dues outstanding for a period of more than six months from the date they
became payable.

o} According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues outstanding
gues with respect to GST, sales tax, central excise, VAT which have not been deposited an
account of any dispute and the dues with respect to Income tax and service tax and cess on
which have not been deposited on account of dispute, are as foliows:

| Mame of ' Matureof | Disputed Amount Periog to which | Forum whers |

. the Statue | Dues Amount paid under | the amount relates . the dispute is

f {Rs. in Protest . to pending
| lakh) (Rs.in Lakh) l

Finance Act, | Service tax | 307 - 2007-08 to 2011-12
1994 .

! Custom  Excise
Finance Act, i Service tax 181 14 2009-11 & Service Tax
1984 Appellate

. Tribunal
Finance Act, | Service tax 186 14 2011-12
1884 :

i Finance Act, | Service tax 110 8 2012-13

| 1994 |

Income  Tax l fncome tax 66 - I 2013-14 ITBA _.
Act, 1963 I | "

- Income  Tax | Income tax - - 2021-22 ar {A}-—

‘ Act, 1961 | National

'i




! | ' Faceless &

pre——r s ey

[ ; ‘ Appeal Centre |
| =
* Granted lesser refund than what is claimed in the Return of Income.

-

{vili]. According to the information and explanation provided and as represented to us by the
management there are no transactions which are not recorded in the books of account which have
been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the income
Tax Act, 1961 {43 of 1661). Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3{viii} of the said Order are not
applicable.

{ix) a)  The Company does not have any loans or borrowings during the year and accordingly the
provisions of clause 3{ix}){a) s not applicable.

b} As represented to us by the Company, we are informed that the Company is not declared
wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other iender.

¢ The Company did not have any terms loans turing the current year nor the previous year and
hence the provisions of clause 3{ix}{c})is not applicable to the Company.

d}  According to the infarmation and explanations provided by the Company, there are no funds
ralsad on short term basis that have been utiiisad Tor tong term purposes.

e}  According to the information and expianation provided by the Company and as represenied

to us, the Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to
meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or icint ventures.

T} According to the information and explanation provided by the Company and as represented
to us, the Company has not raised any loans during the year on the pledge of securities held
in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies and hence the provisions of clause
3{ix}{f} is not applicable te the Company.

{x}. a)  According to the information and explanation provided by the Company and as represented
to us, there were no moneys raised by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(x){a) of
the said Order are not applicable.

b)  According to the information and explanation provided by the Company and as represented
to us, there were no preferential allotments or private placement of shares or convertible
debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible} during the year. Accordingly, the
provisions of clause 3{x}){b) of the said Order are not applicable.




i

{xv].

{xvi),

a}l  According to the information and explanation provided by the Company and as represented
to us, no fraud by the Company and noc material fraud on the Company has been noticed or
reported during the year. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(xi}(a) to {c) of the said Order
are not applicable.

b} Noreport under sub-section {12} of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in Form
ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the
Central Government, during the year and up to the date of this report.

¢} According to the information and explanation provided by the Company and as represented
to us, we are informed that there are no whistie blower complaints received by the Company
and has been relied upon by us.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3{xii) of the said Order
are not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us and as represented to
us by the management, all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sectian 177
and 188 of the Act and the details have been disclased in the ind ASfinancial statements as reguired
by the applicable accounting standards.

a}  According to the infarmation and expianation given 1o us and as represented to us by the
management, the Company has an internal audpt system commensurate with the size and
nature of s business,

o

The reports of the Internal Auditors for the year under audit were considered by us.

As represented to us by the management and according to the information and explanation given
tc us, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons
connected with him. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3{xv} of the said Order are not
appiicable,

2. According to the information and explanation given, the Company s not reguired to he
registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934). Accordingly,
clause 3{xvi}{a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

b.  According to the information and explanation given, the Company has not conducted any
Nen-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities without a valid Certificate of Registration
{CoR} from the Reserve Bank of |ndia as per the Reserve Bank of india Act, 1934, Accordingly,
clause 3{xvi){b} of the Order is not applicable to the Company.




¢ According to the information and explanation given, the Company is not a Core Investment
Company {CiC} as defined in the regulations made by the Reserve Bank of india. Accordingly,
clause 3{xvi}{c} of the Qrder is not applicable to the Company.

d.  According to the infarmation and explanation given, the Group has no CIC as part of the
Group. Accordingly, clause 3{xvi}{d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xvit).  The Company has not incurred cash losses in the financial year and in the immediately preceding
financial year.

el Therels no resignation of statutory auditors during the year.

(xix).  According to the information and explanation furnished and as represented to us by the Company
and on the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of reaiisation of financial assets
and payment of financial llabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, we
are of the opinion that no material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that
Company is capable of meeting its llabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they
falt due within a pericd of one year from the balance sheet date.

{xx}. According to the information and explanation furnished and as represented to us by the Company
in respect of other than ongoing projects, the Company has no unspent amount 1o be transferred
to a Fund specified in Schedule Vi to the Companies Act in compliance with second Brovisc to
sub-section (5) of section 135 of the said Act. Accordingly, clause 3(xx){a) and (b} of the Order is
not applicabie to the Company.

Memershép ko, 200533
UDIN: R530052338MIANGSL 1y

Place: Bangalore
Date: April 16, 2025




ANNEXURE-B REFERRED TO IN PARAGRAPH 2 {f} UNDER THE HEADING “REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND
REGULATORY REGUIREMENTS” OF OUR REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF BRIGADE HOSPITALITY SERVICES
EIVITED.

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause {i} of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 {“the Act”):

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Brigade Hospitality Services
Limited {“the Company”) as of March 31, 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the tnd AS finandial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

fManagement’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls:

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on “the internal control cver financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India”. These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial

controls that were operating effectively for ensy ring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
inciuding adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection
of frauds and errors, the accuracy and compieteness of the accounting records, and the timely

i oA

preparation of reliable financial information, as required undar the Companies Act, 2013 {“the Act )

Auditors’ Responsibility:

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting {the “Guidance Nete”) and the Standards on
Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed o be prescribed under section 143(10} of the Act, to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial cenirols, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial
Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance zbout whether adeguate internal financial controls over financial reporting
was established and maintaired and if such controls operated effectively in alf material respects.




Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Qur audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls systern over financlal reporting.

MMeaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting:

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reascnable assurance regarding the reliabiiity of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that
{1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; {2} provide reascnahie assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accented accounting princisles, and that receipts end expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and {3}
provide reasonanie assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use,

<

r dispesition of the company’s assets that could have a materia; effect on the financial stataments.
Inherant Umitations of internal Financial Controls Over Einancial Reporting:

Because of the Inherent limitations of internal financial controts over financial reporting, including the
passibility of collusion or Emproper management overtide of cantrols, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may oceur and not be detected. Also, prajections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls aver financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.




Opinion:

In our opinion, the Company, in all materia respects, has adequate internal financial controls system
over financial reporting and such internal financial controis over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at March 3%, 2025, based on “the internal control over financial reporting criteria
estabiished by the Company considering the essential components of internal control siated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India”.

Ch d Accountant
Membea‘ship Mo. 200533 )
upin: 25 200533 BMIANCSASO

Place: Bangalore
Date: April 16, 2025



Brigade Hospitality Services Limited
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025
(All amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except as otherwise stated)

ASSETS
Non-current Assets

Property. plant and equipment
Capital work in progress
Investiment Property
Financial Assets

Investments

Other Financial Assets
Other non-current assets
Sub total

Current Assets
Inventories
Financial assets
Trade receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Bank balances other than Cash and cash equivalents
Other current financial assets
Current Tax Assets (net)
Other current assets

Sub total
Total Assets
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

EQUITY

Equity share capital
Other equity

Total equity

LIABILITIES

Non-Current Liabilities

Financial liabilities
Other non-current financial liabilities
Lease Liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities (net)

Other non-current Liabilities

Long Term Provisions

Sub total

Current Liabilities
Financial liabilities
Trade pavables
- Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises
- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises
Other current financial liabilities
Lease Liabilities
Other current liabilities
Short term provisions
Provision for current tax (net)
Sub total

Total equity and liabilities
Summary of significant accounting policies
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Ind AS financial statements,

As per our report of even date

For Jajram E S.

Place: Bengaluru
Date: April 16, 2025

Notes 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
3 3822 3,721
4 21 3
5 446- 469
6 30 30
T 43 1,243
g - » 170 s 179

( 4532 ( 5,650
9 36 33
10 194 191

1.1 174 7-

1.2 2,560 2,331
7 99 95

115 38
8, 119 376
( 3,297 ( 3,111
p yrd
/7 7.829 7 8761
\ \
12.1 1,000 1,000
13 , 2.850 3.795
( 3,850 ( 4795
14 35 70
15# 80 L
17 60 90
18, 2,834 2,948
19~ _ 40 /30
( 3,058 ( 3,138
16
146 87
14¢ 42 38
is. 20 !
154 706 692
19 7 6
o 3
\ 92 { 82
‘/ 7,829 rd 8,761
2.1

For and on behalf of the board of directors of
Brigade Hospitality Services Limited

Vineat Ve
Drirecto
DIN: 06362115

@\Q\&W’E\’

CFO & Company Secretary
Membership No: ACS 12444

Place: Bengalury
Date: April 16, 2025

Gurme?t Sing|
Manager



Brigzade Hospitality Services Limited
Statement of profit and loss for the vear ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except as otherwise stated)

Notes 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
Income
Revenue from operations 20 4,776 4,514
Other income 21 7148 129
Total Income (i) [ 4924 { 4.643
L]
Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 22 791 839
Employee benefits expense 23 1,271 1.170
Finance costs 24 45 29
Depreciation and amortization expense 25 350 315
Other expenses 26 . 1,229 71,205
Total expenses (ii) ¢ 3.686 ¥ 3.558
Profit before exceptional items and tax (iii) = (i) - (i) ¢ 1238 ¢ 1.085
Exceptional Items (iv) 27 418 -
-
Profit before tax (v) = (iii) - (iv) < 820 § 1,085
Tax expense 17
Current tax 317 315
Tax expense -Prior year (6) , 3
Deferred tax (34) 2 (13)
Total tax expense (vi) < 277 $ 305
s .

Profit for the year (vii) = (v) - (vi) ¢ 543 ¢ 780
Other comprehensive income
Ttems that will not to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods:

Re-measurement gains/ (losses) on defined benefit plans 16 (14)

Income tax relating to above (4) y A
Other comprehensive income ('OCT') (viii) v 12 { an
Total c:.n!a prehensive income for the year ) - ( 555 (-770
(comprising Profit and OCI for the year) (ix) = (vii) + (viii)
Earnings per equity share in INR 28
[nominal value of share Rs.10 (March 31, 2024: Rs.10)
Basic 543 7.80
Diluted 543 7.80
Summary of significant accounting policies 2.1

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Ind AS financial statements,

As per our report of even date
For Jairam.E.S. - For and on behalf of the board of directors of
Y Brigade Hospitality Services Limited

Y

Vineet Vefma
! Directdr
Membdrshig No.: 200533 DIN: 06362115

Yo

CFO & Company Secretary Manager
Membership No: ACS 12444

Place: Bengaluru Place: Bengaluru
Date: April 16, 2025 Date: April 16, 2025



Brigade Hospitality Services Limited
Statement of cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except as otherwise stated)

31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax 820 1.086
Adjustment to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows. . -
Depreciation and amortization expense 350 316
Interest expense 45 29
Interest income (148) (129)
Bad debts written off - -
Bad and doubtful debts/advances - 1
Loss on sale of Assets - -
Capital work in progress written off - 31
e
Operating profit before working capital changes { 1.067 ( 1,334
Movements in working capital :
Increase in trade payables 59 (21)
(Decrease) in other liabilities (152) 116
(Decrease) in trade receivables 2 (49)
Decrease / (increase) in inventories (3) (6)"
Decrease in other assets 266 (360)
Decrease in provisions ~ 6 Pk
Cash generated from operations ( 1.245 ( 1,019
Direct taxes paid, net ' _(378) A373)
Net cash flow from operating activities (A) {867 ( 646
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of Property Plant and Equipment (320) (125)
(including capital work in progress and capital advances)
Proceeds from sale of PPE (Including CWIP) - 230
(Investment)/Redemption of fixed deposits, net (229) (772)
Redemption of Security deposit 1,200 45
Advance received for sale of property 76 40
Movement in non current liabilites (35) (150)
Interest received 140 48
Net cash flow (used in) investing activities (B) v 832 { (684)
Cash flows from financing activities
Finance cost (27) (29)
Dividends paid A1.500) .
Net cash flow (used in) in financing activities (C) [ (1,527) (;29!
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+ B + () (1 72 ((6?)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year (8) 59
=
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 7164 { ®
Compenents of cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand 2 3
With banks:
- On current accounts 172 43
Less: book overdraft (10) (54)
Total cash and cash equivalents as per cash flow statement 164 £ (8)
X =
Summary of significant accounting policies 2.1

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Ind AS financial statements.

For and on behalf of the board of directors of
igade Hospitality Services Limited

Vineet Ve
Director
DIN: 06362115

ant B Manmadkar Gurmeet Singh

CFO & Company Secretary Manager
Membership No: ACS 12444

Place: Bengaluru Place: Bengaluru
Date: April 16, 2025 Date: April 16, 2025



' Brigade Hospitality Services Limited

Statement of changes in equity for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except as otherwise stated)

A. Equity share capital

Equity shares of Rs.10 each:
As at March 31, 2023
Changes in Equity Share Capital due to prior period errors
Restated balance at the beginning of the current reporting period
Changes during the year
As at March 31, 2024
Changes in Equity Share Capital due to prior period errors
Restated balance at the beginning of the current reporting period
Changes during the year
As at March 31, 2025

B. Other equity

Asat1 April 2023

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income
As at 1 April 2024

Profit for the vear

Other comprehensive income
Dividends Paid

As at March 31, 2025

*Represents the Remeasurement of employcec defined benefit plans,

No. of shures Rs.
(in lakhs)
100 1,000
100 1,000
100 1,000

Reserves and Surplus Total
Capital Other
General Reserve  Retained earnings  Redemption Comprehensive
Reserve Income*
359 1,658 1,009 (1) 3,025
0 780 ] 0 780
0 - e _A10) (10)
{ 359 72,438 ( 1,009 L an ¢ 3795
0 543 0 0 543
0 0 12 ‘12
o 0 _A1.500) y, 0 70 1,500)
L 359 1,481 11,009 £ 1 2.850

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Ind AS financial statements,

As per our report of even date

For Jairam E .
C‘W ntants 3

Place: Bengaluru
Date: April 16, 2025

Vineet Ve
Director
DIN: 06362115

2
OM
M urmeet Singh

CFO & Company Secretary
Membership No: ACS 12444

Place: Bengaluru
Date: April 16, 2025

For and on behalf of the board of directors of
Brigade Hospitality Services Limited

DIN: 02750342

Manager



- B;‘igade Hospitality Services Limited
Notes to Ind AS Financial Statements for the vear ended March 31, 2025
{All ameunts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except as otherwise stated)

- L Corporate information

Brigade Hospitality Services Limited (‘BHSL’ or the"Company’) was Incorporated as a private limited company on the
June 01, 2004. The Company is in hospitality business including running and managing clubs, service apartments and
convention centers. The Company was converted to a public limited company w.e.f September 23, 2008,

The Ind AS financial statements werc authorized for issue in accordance with a resolution of the directors on 16" April, 2024.
2(a)  Basis of preparation

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of
the Companies Act, 2013 {"the Act’), read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended.

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for certain financial instruments which are
measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies below. Historical cost is
generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

{b) Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures

The accounting policies adopted, and methods of computation followed are consistent with those of the previous financial year,
2.1 Summary of significant accounting pelicies

{a) Usc of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conform ity with Ind AS requires the management to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenucs, expenses, assels and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent
liabilities, at the end of the reporting period. Although these estimates are based on the management’s best knowledge of
current events and actions, uncertainty shout these assumptions and estimates could result in the outcom es requiring a matetriai
adjustment to the camying amounts of assets or Habilities. The effect of change in an accounting estimate is recognized
prospectively.

(b) Current versus non-current classification
The Company presents asscts and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification.

An asset is ireated as current when it is:

- Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

- Held primarily for the purpose of trading

- Expecled to be realized within twelve months after the reporting peried, or

- Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchan ged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the
reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A Habilily is current when:

- It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

- It 1s held primarily for the purpese of trading

- It is due 10 be setiled within twehve months after the reporting period, or

~ There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the Tiability for at least twelve months after the reporting period
All other liabilitics are classified as non-current,

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization i cash and cash
equivalents. The Company has evaluated and considered its operating cvecle as 12 months and accordingly has reclassified its

assets and Habilities into cuwrrent and non-current.

Assets and liabilities, other than those discussed above, are classified as current to the extent they are expected to be realized/
are contractually repayable within 12 months from the Ralance sheet date and as non-current, in other cases.

Deferred tax assets/ Habilities are classified as non-current assets/ liabilities.




__Bi‘igade Hospitality Services Limited
Notes te Ind AS Financial Statements for tlre year ended March 31,2025
(Al amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except as otherwise stated)

Leasehold improvements are amortized on a straight-line basis over the lease period or useful life, whichever is lower.
Furniture and fixtures related 1o leased premises are depreciated over the life of the lease period.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment arc reviewed at each financial
year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

(e) Investment Property:

nvestment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, mvestment
properties are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated im pairment loss, if any.

The cost includes the cost of replacing parts and borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition criteria
are met. When significant parts of the investment property are required to be replaced al intervals, the Company depreciates
them separately based on their specific useful Tives. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognized in incorue statement
as and when incurred.

The Corapany measures investmant PPOrty nsiig, ot chover] mpugureingin.

Investment properties are de-recognized either when they have been disposed of or when they are permanently withdrawn from
use and no future economic benefit is expected from their disposal. The difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset is recognized in income statement in the period of de-recognition,

13] Impairment

A. Financial assets

The Company assesses at cach date of balance sheet whether a financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. Ind AS
109 requires expected credit losses 1o be measured through a loss allowance. The Company recognizes lifetime expected losscs
for all contract assets and / or all trade receivables that do not constitute a financing fransaction. For all other financial assets,
expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the 12-month expected credit losses or at an amount equal to the life
time expected credit losses if the credit risk on the financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition.

B. Non-financial assets

The Company assesses at cach reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication
exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An
asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating ymit’s (OGN net selling price ond its value in use.
The recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. Where the carrying amount of an assct or CGU exceeds its
recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to ils recoverable amount. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects curvent market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining net selling price, recent market
transactions are taken into account, if available. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is
uscd.

Impairment losses are recognized in the statement of profit and loss. Afier impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised
carrying amount of the asset over its remaining useful ife.

(® Leases

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract coneys the
right to controf the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Company as a lessee
The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases. except for short-term leases and

leases of low value assets. The company recognizes lease liabilities to make lcase payments and right of use of assets
representing the right to use the underlying assets.




.Brigade Hospitality Services Limited
Notes to Ind AS Financial Statements for the vear ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, cxeept as otherwise stated)

Income from fease remtals
Refer accounting policy under “leases” above.

fnlerest income
hiterest income, including income arising from other financial instruments measured a1 amortized cost, is recognized using the
effective interest rate method.

Dividend income
Dividend income is recognized when the Company’s right to receive dividend is cstablished, which is zenerally when
sharcholders approve the dividend.

) Foreign currency translation

Functional and presentation currency

items included in the financial statements of the Company are mecasured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the Company operates (*the functional currency’). The financial statements are presented in Indian rupee
(INR), which is the Company’s functional and presentation CUITENnCy.

Foreign currency transactions and balances

i} Initial recognition - Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the reporting currency, by applying to the foreign curency
amount the exchange rate between the reporting currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction.

1iy Conversion - Forcign currency monetary ftems are retranslated using the exchange rate prevailing at the reporting date.
Non-monetary items, which arc measured in terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign currency, are reported using the
exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Non-monetary items, which are measured at fair value or other similar valuation
denominated in a foreign currency, are translated using the exchange rate at the date when such value was deterimined.

it} Exchange differences -~ The Company accounts for exchan ge differences arising on translation/ settlement of forei an
CuTency monetary items as income or as expense in the period in which they arise.

)] Hetirement and other employece benefits

Retirement benefits in the form of state governed Employee Provident Fund, Employee State [nsurance and Emplovee Pension
Fund Schemes are defined contribution schemes (collectively the ‘Schemes”). The Company has no obligation, other than the
contribution payable to the Schemes. The Company recognizes contribution payable to the Schemes as expenditure, when an
employee renders the related service. The contribution paid in excess of amount due is recognized as an asset and the
contribution due in excess of amount paid is recognized as a liability.

Gratuity, which is a defined benefit plan, is accrued based on an independent actuarial valuation, which is done based on
project unit credit method as at the balance sheet date. The Company recognizes the net obligation of a defined benefit plan in
its balance sheet as an asset or liability. Gains and losses through re-measurements of the nét defined benefit liability/ {asset)
are recognized in other comprehensive income. In accordance with Ind AS, re-measurement gains and losses on defined
benefit plans recognized in OCI are not to be subsequently reclassified to stalement of profit and loss. As required under Ind
AS compliant Schedule 111, the Company recognizes re-measurement gains and losses on defined benefit plans (net of tax) to
retained earnings,

Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next twelve months, is treated as shott-term employee benefit.
The Company measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount hat it expects to pay as a result of the
unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date.

The Company treats accumulated Jeave expected 1o be carried forward beyond twelve months, as tong-term emplovee benefit
for measurement purposes. Such fong-term compensated absences are provided for based on the actuarial valuation using the
projected unit credit method, made at the end of each financial vear. Actuarial gains/losses are immediately taken to the
statement of profit and loss. The Company presents the accumulated leave Hability as a current Hability in the balance sheet,
since it does not have an unconditional right to defer its settlement for twelve months after the reporting date.

(m) Income taxes

Income tax expense comprises current tax expense and the net change in the deferred tax asset or liability during the veg




.Brigade IHospitality Services Limited
Notes to Ind AS Finaneial Statements for the vear ended March 31, 2025
{All amounts in Indian Rupecs Lakhs, except as otherwise stated)

{p)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. Financial assets and liabilities are iitially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition or issuc of financial assets and financial Habilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value measured on initial recognition of financial asset or
financiai liability.

Lit.

vi.

Vil

viil.

ix.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

Financial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if these financial assets are held within a
business whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the
contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial asscts at fair value through profit or loss

Financial asscts are measured at fair value through profit or loss unless it is measured at amortized cost or at fair value
through other comprehensive income on initial recognition. The transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets and liabilitics at fair value through profit or loss are immediately recognized in statement of profit and
loss,

Financial assets ar amortized cost

Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost if these financial assets are held within a business whose
objective is to hold these assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the fnancial agset
give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

Debt instruments at amortized cost

A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortized cost if both the following conditions are met:

a} The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and

b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely pavments of prineipal and
interest (SPPT) on the principal amount outstandin a.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest
rate {EIR) method. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or
costs that are an integral part of the BiR. The EIR amortization is included in finance income in the profit or loss, The
losses arising from tmpairment are recognized in the profit or loss. This category generally applies to trade and other
recetvables.

Lquity investment in subsidiaries
Tnvestment in subridiariee are carriod ot coat. Impairmeit Fonigiized, Lany, Iy reduced fForii the cativing vaiue.

De-recognition of financial asset
The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire
or it transfers the financial asset and the transfer qualifics for de-recognition under Ind AS 109,

Financial Habilities

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
borrowings, or as payables, as appropriate, The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and
borrowlngs including bank overdrafis. The subsequent measurement of financial Labilities depends on their classification,
which is described below.

Fmancial liabilities at fair value through profit or foss

Fmancial Tiabilitics at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial Habilities
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for
trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term.

Financial Habilities at amortized cost
Financial liabilities are subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest (‘FIR’) method. Gains and losses
are recognized i profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognized as well as through the EIR amortization process,




_Bﬁgade Hospitality Services Limited
Notes to Ind AS Financial Statements for the vear ended March 31, 2025
(All amouats in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except as otherwise stated)

purchase, to be cash equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents consist of balances with banks which are unrestricted for
withdrawal and usage.

2.2 Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumplions

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a
material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities aflected in future periods.

In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management makes judgment, estimates and assumptions which
have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements:

The key judgment, estimates and assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
reporting date, which have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrving amounts of assets and liabilitics
within the next financial year, are described below. The Company based its judgments and assumptions and estimales on
parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about fufure
developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the
Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur. Also refer note 2.3 below.

Significant accounting judgements, cstimates and assumptions used by management are as below:

Defined benefit plans - Gratuity

The cost of the defined benefll gratuity plan and other post-employment medical benefits and the present value of the gratuity
obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may
differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and
mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defincd benefit obligation is
highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

The parameter most subject to change s the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate for plans operated in
India, the management considers the interest rates of government bonds. The mortality rate is based on publicly available
mortality tables. Those mortality tables tend to change only at interval in response to demographic changes. Future salary
Increases are based on expected future inflation rates and expected salary increase thereon.

Measurement of financial instruments at amortized cost

Financial instruments are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest (‘EIR’) method. The
computation of amortized cost is sensilive to the inputs to EIR including effective rate of interest, contractual cash flows and
the expected life of the financial instrument. Changes in assumptions about these inputs could affect the reported value of
financial instruments.
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Notes to Ind AS financiat seateurents for The ¥ear cnded Maceh 31, 2025
{AN amvunts in lodsn Rupees Labhs, except as otherwise skated)

4 Capital Work Propress
Property, plant and TForal
equipment
At March 31,2023 e 245 248
-Addihgng {subsequant expendiin e = k3 H
-Capitalized during : - -
"-Dreletions 245 2
At Murch 3. 2024 - 3 IS
-Acdiors {subsequent expenditues) 13 13
-Capitalised diring ke - -
"« Beliong -
Al Muwrch 3126025 21 It
Apcing of Capiral Work in Pragress (WP
CWIP ) 31-Mar-2¥ FE-Manld
AL Frojects in Propress:
Amonnl in CWIP fir 3 peruod of
Tass | weag ’ 13 5
12 vears i -
o than 3 years - '
Total g1t Z 8
Fledar-25 IE-Mur-24
B. Prujects tensporaily susprended:
235 than | year - -
1-2years -
yoars - -
More than 3 years -
Tatat R
=
# lovestment property
31-May-25 Fi-Mar-24
AL Cost 493
Asiditions - 203
Disposats - -
493 455
B. Acewmuolated Bepreciation
Opearar Balmes 0
Dweprociaton 23 24
47400 2441
Net boak vahre {(A-B) Hs.00 ¥ st
Tfrrmation regarding tacome and Expeadilure of Investment Propesty: 3t-Mappa25 31-Mar-24
Banlal income derivad from invesimant proparfics (ircinding other aperating fnseme) Gl ]
Dircet operzting, ex; {incli:ding Repairs & Maintai I} z 2

Prafit 7 {losy) arishie from Juvestment propertics before depreciation and indaect
expenses
ezt Pleprociaion & Amurtisation Expanse

Brofit { (loss} arising from Investment pruperties before indirect expenses

The managsmen hes dstermined that the invesmen PeuperTies vonsist of commarial space,

The Company bus no restrickions oo the reslisshs

of #5 fvasimens pepertiss and no comrecinal ol Ligations (o

purchase, corstiust or devaivg: imvasient proderies or for reEpEiTs. Srintonanee and
enbencemants.

Eair value of investment groperty based on valustion report ohivined Iy s tegistered value: s Bz 1150 Takhs, {FY 2023-24 Feir valuz of invesmznt peopary s Rs, 5
ar the batiding vaine md the muidalins vaiue for S land wost. )

22 |ekh. The f2ir valus is arteved hased

3 Investmients

3-Man 25 F1-Mar-24

Nen-curtent

A Ivestinents. cardied ai cost

Irvesinagnis in equily Insoumionte

Investinenis in subridiaris fom cest)

2,96 RE0 [ rreviols vear 2 G0} Adlly paid squty sharas of B, bv- each 30
in Calebrations Private i :

Total lnvestimones Carted a1 Cost

b Aggrogate amemt of quoted vestmants activele freded and warker vatue Hepeal - -

bl Apzrerste amount of other investizeols A 30
= 100% subsigismy

? her Findecial Assots
{Lnsecared, consiterad anod} Nog-current Cuternt
31-Mar.25 31-MEar-24 31-Mar-25 3t-Mar.2
Seourity doposi 43 3243 2 4
Irterest aeemaed ad not due on invesunent in deposits ]

" 43 I 99




- Brigade Hospitality Sevvives Limited

Notes de Toid AS finunciaf statemeats fov the yearended March 3, 2625
(A amrawngs in Tnitian Repres Laklis. excopt as utherwise sTaled)

8 Cher assels
{nsecured, considered gond} Moo Carrenl Carreat
’ 3-Mar2s 31-Mar2t 3-Mur-13 31-Mar 13
- - 23 R
- - kL n
e 129 34 [
T% i - -
Taxes paid u 36 A -
Staly Advances - - 7 3
{rther Taceivablos . . - -Z1%
e Pl 37
L =
* Inckades aiscrtizagi 108 UXPERSES

n s ot March U258 of' Ry 242 |aiha, fnot of provision 23 al March 2024 o Rs, 723 Jalih

** Bapresents gratuite find balinee net of provs

o Trventoeies {valued wl tower of cost and net reatisable value) ) 3LMur-23 FH-Mar-24
Food & Beverages 30 )
Chers 5 g
L
i Trade receivables funsecured)
SE-Mare2s 31-Mar-24
Trede reveivables, considrred pocd:
3 ALaZ i (a5t 21 2
Hzesivalbles fran shar 172 176
Traude Racervables, ooosidered doubtiul
Credits imspaired L is

Total Trade Receivables

Less - Allowaries

Trarde Recetvahle Ageing Schednie:

F1-Mar-25 F1-Mar-24
Uinseeirred snd Tndispucd
Clonsidered gnod:
aj Dutstanciog Sir the folivwing perisds From due dae of pEVILZIL
Ly than & Monthy 179 I3
& Months e 1 Year 14 4

thi 3 Years - -
: Allowanees

A 196
Credits {mpaived *
=y Cstanding for the following pariods fvmn due date wf payenant
Lzzs than 6 Months
& Monlbs to ] ¥ear
1-2%Years 34 Ex)
2-3Yrvars
Morwe than 3 Years
Lesss Alfpwvahies
B -
Total (A+&} &7 193 3
Moke:
There are ne disputad trade rec
11.E Cash and cash eguivalents
31-May-25 AT-Mar-24
Cask on hand 2 3
Talances with backs:
- £ CUTTENt accounts 172 44
Chegues, drafis on hand - -
17 ES
11.2 Bank alunces other than eash and cash equivalents
331-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
Balances with backs:
— Dreezsits with rermaining restumioe of Jess than §3 months 2,351
& 233
Break up of Anancial assets carticd 3¢ amortised cost AF-Mar-25 FMuar-24
Tradr recarvables (nets 93 [493
Cash end cash squivalonis (rets 10 13 173
Balzuces al bank other than cash and cash equivalents (ot 10.2) 2,360
Other Francial assets PREE

& 3070
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Netes to Ind AR Ansnciat stadements far the veunr ended Mareh 31, 2025

CALN el s in Tndian Rupees Lakbs, excepd as atherwise stated)

iLt

Eapuity share capritaf

Arthorised share captrat {No.) 3-Marls 31-Mar-24

Mo, iee lakhs 25 M. in lalifes R
Equity shares of Re 0 ench: A
Talanca 2t ihe bugening of e vear ;f__:' . [RECA] 100 1,065

g tha vear -

Balance at the end of the 1606 Laoo 144
Issued, subsevibed imd flly patd- up shure capita) 31-Mae-2s F-Mar-24

Ma.in kalhs Rs. M, in Bk Ra.
Faquiey shares of Rs.T0 each: . B
Balance 2t tive begmening of fie venr 1o {“: 1,000 i ERG]
Changes during the vaac .
Batance at the end af the vear w0 £ 14w w5 b

TFerms! rights wllached to equily shares

The Corapany has anly ane eless of equity shares having 2 par value of s, 19 pez sh
duclares snd pays dividend in Indian Rupees The dividend propesed by the Board of dirzcior i subject to fhe 4 ol
Ganeral et
L eversd ol Smidation of the Company, the hedders of aquity shares would Be sntilled e rooeive recuinme sssets of fhe Comnpary. affer d:
arelerentizl zmewts. The distribution w2l be in properiis o the number of eqquity shares hald by Uhe sharchalds

7 share. The Coneeny

e sharcholders ia fe snguing Annuel

straon of all

L

[t Shayps betd be hobding! nttmate holding rompany and! or their snbeidiaries! suxeriafes

325 31-Ma24
Brigade Entorprizes Licnted. the holding company
10,000,000 [March 31, 4 - 10000050} eouny shares of Bs. 10 each I i
(h) Details of sharcholders hokdilg mere than 5%, skares in the COMpIIYD
IE-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
Mes, % holding Mo, %0 belding
Equity shiares of Rs Ut eack:
Brigade Erterprisss Lioited 100 100745 £t e
lustruments endively ety in nataee
Authorised share capital (No.} F1-Mar-25 3t-Mar-24
Mo i fekhs R, N b lakdus R
Optionally Convertiple Redeemahle Prefercner Shares of R 100 cach FOCRPEY
Baiwce al the beginning of the vear m 2004 ] 2,000
paid 2,600 0 pali i)

Basued, subseribed and fuly paid- up share capital 31-Mar-25 3E-Mar-24

Mo, in Takhs Hs. N ta laldhs R
TURPE of Ry, 100 cach
Balanee 2 the heginning of the vear - N - -
Balmice =i the end of the year . - - -
Other eguity: F1-Mae24
CGeneral resenve {A) ) )
Add: Ameunt transterrad o Samplus in fhe statsment of profit and loss towsards fazure
capatal exmansion - -
Halanee af 1ke end of the year '{ 359 P
Capital Redemption Reserve (B
Balance at the bezning af the vear 1.009 1,00
Addl: Amount transfimed from Suephis in the sialement of profit and loss - -

Balanee at the end of the period

Surplns in the statenent of profit wnd loss ()

Balanes at the boyinming of the yeer 2 Ak 1,659
Lesis: Aot Lransiereed fo capital redermption reserve - -
Add: Prodit fo: e vear 543 734
Dividends paid £1,500) -
Transifor from{te) retmned camings .-

Balance at the end of the year TA%2
(her Camprelensive Income I3

Rerneasurenzsnt of net defingd bensfi lakilinasss:
Falznce at the beginning of the vear

F

Adiii Amount transfess

il from Surplos in the statement of profit sod loss

&
Tuotal ather eqoity {ASB-CIH ¥

b3

i
;
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Notes 1o Tt AS firuecial statements for the wear ended March 31, 2125

(A amonngs io Tadian Ruapees Lakbs, excep as otherwise siated)

The Comzpage i e Anngal al Mast

) R 1304 ki

L has paid = Fingl dvidend thar was rroposse in the TV 202324 of Ra. 1% per

tiozs of Compenics At 2003 Capits? Redeimption Res
sminal value

d lozs sepresenis Conpany™s priar v
prigton ol profi,

=i graatad on account of cedumption of Eheumally

an undistribuned cxmings alier 1aves,

14 (Hber financial Babilities

Nan-crrrent Tarvent
FhaMae-28 3T-Mm-24 3-Mav-28 3T-N-Td

Finanrial leahilities at amortised eosi:

Leuse ans Intavest fron deposins 0 Ex 1
70 g a2 T
is Leuse Liakifites
- Ma-ciErrent Current

3hMuar-25 IE-Ma-24 31-Mar-25 3t-Mar-24

Lease Lishilites (Refer Note 20 (233 bar) - 0 -

. i ]
£ &0 - %20 -

14 Trade payallbe:
F-MEar-1% 3L

Tomowing:
Trade payebies
- Tetal oustanding dioes of micro sismprises 2nd small el - -
- Totzl outstunding duss of craditers ashes iban mico srtepness and small enterproses
- Payable to refuted partiss (noses 261 - -

- Bavably to ather puities

Trwde Pavable Apeing Scheduls:

S1-Maw-25 31-Mac-24

{2t tn-billed and oo dus -

31-Mar-25 3t-Mar-24

{c} Favablis o relaled parias

Lezigt than & Monzis - -
G Momths - & Yeor - -
1-2 ¥ears - -
2+ 3 Yours -

Mo than 3 Years

Totaf (ath4c)

Noter
Therw are o disputed trade payahics

Break up of fEnancial liabilities ¢ | st amioeticed post F-Mar2s 31-Ma-24
Teade pevabies (note 16) 145 37
Crher fimanciad fabilives dnove 141 w7 HI8
Lesss Liabiliies Enove 130 109

Py T,

3

R,
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Nodes 1o Ind AS fiouecial siaiemants for the year endled March 31, 2023
[AIL stmouwes b lndian Rupees Lakhs, excepf as pherwise alaled)

i7 lovame fux
A} Deferved Tax SEMar-25 3] -Ma-24
Defrred tax liahiities
PPE - Impect of depreciasion
Gross deferred dav fiabilities
Deferret tax assets
resit of profit and loss in the current vear bt il 27
Gross defereed tax sssets _ { KR ﬁ:" 27
R, S . S
a -
Nof defecred tax labilities i Pl
by Tax expense FaMars25 3F-Mae-24
LCarrend fax
Cumens jncoms tax charge s
Tan Expanse- Prior vear 3
Breferved tax chinge
kit woongination sngd raversal of lemparary diferenees L3 !
Taconwe (ax expense veporter i the Statentent of profit o loss € 277 ;305
—_— T, w T
Breferred rax velated 1o iems recognized @ QO
Inconze fa charge relating w itomss 1ecomiszed i O E
Fan expense reported in the Other COLeprE teiLsive ERCaID
Nole:
Fecgneilialion of i cvpetse znd the zcounting prafit emaltiplisd by Endia’s domastic sw e,
F-Mar-25 3i-Ma24
Aconinting profit befiome incorae fax B0 1485
Tax o aceminging prafit ai SO noone N targ 230 16%, March 312024 251 6] 2 273
Fan offect on mon-dadeibic CRPLINES St X e
Txcepnonal itecns ad -
Tax effoet of om fiming diSran:
Tax expense reported in the Statement of profit or toss
Reconeiliniion of deferred bax liabifites {neth:
:
3Mar-25 31 -Mar2s
L2ar ety JbMardd
Csening bafunce ] e
Dferred fax ch G in prodil o loss
Diuferred lux charge dumitg ke perind regoenised i CHT
Closing balance of deferred tax linhitities
is Crilier liabifities
Non-Correat Crvreat
31-Mar25 I-Ma24 3-Mar-25  31-Mar-24
Mamharshin foe received in zdvencs ZELG a 196 218
Advance recaived for Sale of Assers * - - TE -
Advenee fzom cugiomers - - i 230
Etanutery dues pavable - aT 53
Fook everdrall - - H k2]
E:mplayes bensfits pavable - - 2] Gah
Trcosne received in advance H %] 4 4
Chker payahlzs - Lo a0 3
0834 § 2048 T gy
* The Company has reeeived this advance from a related Pty (zefer nets 28) gasiest an aureement (o sell for a propesty held by the Company in Vaikem,
1% Provisiens
Nog-Corrent Curreal
3i-Ma2s 31-Mar-24 3-Mar-25 31-Mar-2d
Provasion for fuave ancashmant a0 i0 ? &
Provvigion: for o - - 3
40 o 31 Pl il




Brigacle Hospitality Services Limited

Notes to Ind AS financial statemeats tor the vear ended March 31,2025

(All amounts in Indian Rupecs 1.akhs, except as etherwise stated)

20

20.1

20.2

21

22

Revenue from operations

31-Mar-25 JE-Mar-24

Revenue from comracts with customers
-Income from hospitality services 4,363 4,170
Income from lease rentals . 252 186
A § 4,617 4356

Other operating rovenue

~Others 139 138
B 159 B3B8
(A)HB) {4776 {451

Pisaggregated revenue information

Set out below is the disaggregation of the Company™s revenue from contracts with customers by liming of transter of goods or services:

Revenue from coatracis with customers 31-Mar-25,

31-Mar.24

Revenue recognised over time 74365 i 4170
Contract batuances
3i-Mar23 31-Mar-24
Trade receivables 227 360
Contract liahjlities '
= Membership fec recetved in advance 3012 4,005
- Advance from customers 238 ) 86
- Income reccived in advance .22 8
7 3499 {4450
Other income
3i-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
interest income:
Bank deposits 144 125
Amortization of deferred remt 4 q
{0 13 129
Cost of materials consumed
31-Mar25 Ji-Mar-24
Invertory at the beginning of the vear 33 28
Add: Purchases during the vear 794 844
827 872
Less: Invenlory at the cnd of the year 36} _é;:'f(33)
Cost of raw materials consumed § 79t ¢ 839




Brigade THospitality Services Limited
Notes to Ind AS finaccial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

(Al amounts in Fadiar Rupees Eakhs, except as otherwise stated)

23 Enmplayee benefits expense

Salaries and wages
Contribution to provident and other funds
Share based expense

Staff welfare ex PEnses

24 Tisance costs

[nterest

on sceurity deposits

on fease liabilities
Credit card and eiher commission charges
Total

25 Depreciation and amortization cxpense

Depreciation of property, plant and cyuipment
Depreciation on investment properly
Depreciation on Right of Use Asset

26 Other ¢xpenses

Power and el
Remt
Repairs and maintenance:

Buildings

Machinery

Others
Insurance
Rates and taxes
Payment to anditor {Tefer note below)
Advertisement and sales promation
Sub Contractor Fxpenscs
Reversal of provision for bad debts
Provision for doubtfil debts
Loss on sale of fixed asset {ncl)
Contribution towards CSR Expenditure
Legal and professional charges
Directors’ stiting fees
Printing and Stationery Expenses
Travelling & Conveyance
Telephone & other compmnication expenses
Water Charges
Commission
Miscellaneous expenses
Capital work in progress written off

(D) Payment to auditors
As auditor:
Audit fees

Limied review

3i-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
1,149 1.046
71 66
- 2
5 37
1271 £ 1,170
I1-Mar-23 3i-Mar-24
9 4
5] -
27 23
43 72
3-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
312 292
23 23
A -
7350 T 315
31-Mar-25  31-Mar24
221 218
> ¥
33 29
148 125
2 1
34 29
127 103
7 7
68 59
342 329
(5) -
5 1
- I
14’ 5
11 89
2 3
3 8
17
9

% 1,229

31-Mar-25

ot




Brigade Hospitality Services Limited

Notes 1o 1nd AS financial statemcents for the vear ended March 3¢, 2025

{All amonnts in [ndian Rapees Lakhs, except as otherwise slated)

I
-1

28

29

Exceplionat ltem:

Thning the ves ¥ relasing 1o one of 3
and & chil- The Woodrese for the perad:

classificanion wad mends of calewlagion of ¢

r. the Company has paid an udditional Proports tax of Re. 198 12k and Bs
cenirg FY 2008-09 w0 FY 2023-24 ander o Une
axes for (he said peried.

2 lukh as penal :
i Suttlement Scheme prov

Earnings per share

Basic carmings per share (FPS) amounts are culewlated by deviding the profir for the year atcibtalle fo equity heiders of the Comzpany by the weighted averane rumher

of equity shares ausianding during the vear,

Diluded FPS amomts are caloniated by dividing the profit attritansble 1o equity holders By the wei
Pliss the w

Pled average mauber of equity shares that would be fasued on conversion of a1l the dilutive potenial equity sh

The following refloets the income and share datz used in the basic und diloted EPS computation:

s convenlion contrs- MLT Whitefictd
fed by BRMP on account of differences in

ied averzae mumber of eqnity shaees curgianding duemg the year
o5 mita equity shares,

March 31, 2825 March 31, 2024
Penfil afier tax 343 T8
Welghted average numbsr of equity shares for basic EPS (Mo, in fukhs) 109 100
Effect of dilution: On conversion of prefereuce shares 1o enuity (Mo i lakhs) . -
Weighted average number of cquity shaves sdjusted for the offect of dilution (Mo, in laklis) 10 160
Nominal value of equity share (Rs.) 19 18
Larmings per shace in Rs,
Basic 243 g
lured 343 TED

Contmitments and contingencies

a. Leases

Operating lease: Company as Iessee

The Cempany s taken tand and residentizl space nnder cancellable and non-canceflable aperating leases. These leases have Bfe of upto ien wears with renewat aption
and inchude 2 claise to enable upward 1evision of the lease rental an periodieal basis. There are no restrictions pluced upan the Company by entering into thess icases,

Disclasure of leases:

(1) The following is the wiovemen of lezse liabilitiss durivg the year endsd Merck 3T, 2025,

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Balance at the beginning of the year

O account of Fesh lense® 121 -
Finange cost acctued duriag the year 9 -
hdodification of leases - -
Unwinding of leases -
Fayment of feasc Habililios 21 -
Batance at the end of the year 109 -

* The above disclosure includes loase agresment entered into Iy 1he Company with Brigade Enterprises Eanited, holding company along with two other endtics wherein
cortain portion of the property in "Brigade Annex” 15 lsased for a periad of Tt months and renewable at the option of the Tesses. The Cotpuny believs that the lease
vears (rang reasomabile period

contract will contisure for more than 11 montli: and has accordingly recognized Risht of Use Asset and Loase Lizlality far 2 period of 3

of lease). The Lease Liabilitv and the Bisht of Use Assor is initally recounized ai Bs. 53 lakhs.

The Company does aot face 2 iguidity tisk with regrard tor its lease liabifities as the current assets are sufficient to meet the abligations relaed to lease lizhilities as and

Details regarding the cantractaral matuarities of lease liabitities as at March 31, 2025 on pndiscomnted basis:

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Luss than ene vear 20 -
Cne to five vears A% -
Mdore than [ve vears - -
Total 159 -

b.

The Supreme Court of India in u jundgmzent on Providemt Fund dated February 28, 2019 addressed the principls for determining
Basic Sglary fir individuzls betow a pre

clazity 10 this regurd.

c. Contingent Habilities

salary components teat Tomn part of
setilied salary threshold. The Company has evalusted the impact avising from such judsement and will consider the mpact
wherever applicable on a prospeetive busis from the dete of the SC arder, Further, the Company will svaluate need [or edditionm provision i avy_ on receiving furtler

March 31, 2825 March 31, 2024

. Service tax 78

TR4

d. Proposal for declaration of the dividends

For finenctat vear ended 2023, the Board recommrends & fingd drvidend o Bs. 5/ (par vahie ol Ras.
shareliolders in the Anmual General Mesting [ AGM) of the Company.

cach] per equity shave. This payment is subject to the approval of
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30 Rebated Party Bieclosnre:

ab Listof Rebated Parties;

Same of the Related Partics | Nukire of Relatonship
Hoiding Company
Subsizlizn
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o

1 el Tistnie Previget Privaiz ]
Hetel Vanmge Limited 1 ;

SR Prosperits ol 3

Angmists Cab Priv

i "EXOSPL")
o " RTPEL"

Fedlow Suheidiary

B Manageriz Personnel (K340 e Commpars:

Parsong shis o

B) Transactions with related paries: R in lacs

Fartiortirs Relationship March 31 2025] March 312024
: Ak
i BT 1 :
s Company [ i :

Drzings from LI7

Rt paid St -
Purchasa of sood !

i & beveranes « Tandon Asgociata i 0

e

. Vinest Verms

E 1
M=, Nirups
offoed Lo B Am, 0
R = ]
o
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N o

2
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n BLbsidiary - -
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Erizade Hospitality Services Limited
Notes to Ind AS financial statements for the vear ended March 31,2025

(All amouw

<)

nts in Indian Rupees Lakhs. except as otherwise stated)
Purchase of Goods and Services from ACPL
Refund of security deposit from MPPL
Purchase of Goods and Services from WTC
Purchase of Goods and Senvices from OPMSL
Purchase of Goods and Services from Tandem
Purchase of Assets from BHVL
Transfer of business ACPL
Sale of food & beverages w BFOS

Sale of food & beverases to Brizade Estates & Projects Pvi Lid
Sale of food & beverases to WTC

Sale of food & beverages o BILLP
Sale of food & beverages 1o BREPL
Sale of food & beverages 10 PREPL

Sale of food & beverases 1o SRPPHVL
Sale of food & beverases to OPMSL
Sale of food & beverages to BHVL
Sale of propenty, plant and equipment
Sale of food & beverages to BPPL

Sale of food & beverazes 1o MPPL
Sale of food & beverages to ACPL
Sale of food & beverages to BCV

Sale of food & beverages to BTPL
Sale of food & beverages to Brigade Gu at Project Pvt Lid

Sale of food & beverages to Mysore Holdings Private Limited
Sale of food & beverages 1o BIPPL
Sale of food & beverages w Vanantara Estates Pvt Ltd
Advance Received towards Sales of Fixed Asset to BHWVL
Management Contract received from MPPL

/L

Fellow Subsidiary

1,200

o

(=1 =1 (=1 B] (Y B =1 B

1 £ £ 1= I 1 d R

3

{*]
{3

=

o

Enterprise in which KMP int

a

=

-

Relationship

March 31, 2025

le towards scheme of aranpement

Holding Company

17

March 31. 2024

Subsidiary

|Eavable towards scheme of arrangement
Amount receivable/{payable) - Celebrations Pvi Lid

Amount receivable/(pavable) - Brigade Foundation

Enterprise in which KMP is interested

Amount receivable/{payable) - WTC

Amount receivable/( payable) - BPPL
Amount receivable/(pavable) - BBREL

Amount receivable/{payable) - BCV

Amount receivahl able) - BHVL
Amount receivable/{pavable) - BILLP

Amount receivable/{pavable) - MPPL

Amount on Secunty Deposit - MPPL
Amount receivable/{pavable) - OMMPL

Amount receivable/{payable) - ACPL
Amount receivable/{pavable) - BTPL

Amount recervable/(pavable) - PREPL

Amount receivable/{payable) - BIPPL

Amount receivable/(payable) - BFOS
Amount receivable/{pavable) - Brigade Estates & Projects Pvt Lid
Amount receivable/{pavable) - Brigade Gujarat Projects Pvt Lid
Amount reoeiml:lg.";&ahlq - Mysore Holdines Private Limited
Amount recervable/{pavable) - PHVPL

Amount receivable/{payable) - Tandem

Amount receivable/(pavable) - Vanantara Estates Pvt Lid

Fellow Subsidiary

(=] [=] (=] %]

Gl =1 =1 =)

‘_——&__,_____
Amount receivable/{pavable) from Mr. M R Jaishankar/{pavable)
Amount receivable/{pavable) from Ms. Githa Shankar

Amount receivable/{payable) to Mr. Javant B Manmadkar
Amount receivable/{pavable) to Ms. Nirupa Shankar

Amount receivable/(payable) 10 Ms. Pavithra Shankar
Amount receivable/{payable) to Mr_Balaram Menon
Amount receivable/{payable) to Mr. Mohan Parvartikar

Amount rmivab]ﬂgﬂable] to Mr. Amar Mysare

Amount receivable/{pavable) from Mr_Vineet Verma

Amount recervable/(pavable) from Indian Music ience Trust (IME)

Slelole

olo|o

(0}

Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties

The expenses reimbursed by the Company are made on terms equivalent 1o those previali

cash. There have been no guarentes provided/received for any related party receivable/payable.

For and on behalf of the board of directors of
Brigade Hospitality Services Limited

Vineet v
Director
DIN: 06362115

LMo

ant B Manmadkar
CFO & Company Secretary
Membership No. ACS 12444

Place: Bengalury
Date: April 16, 2025

Gurmeet Singh
Manager

ng at Arm's Length Transactions. Outstanding Balances at the year end are unsecured and settlement oceurs in




Brigade Tiospitality Services Limited

Notes to Ind AS [nancial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

{AIF amonnis in lodian Rupees Lakhs, except as otherwise stated)

31

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Coinpara’s principal fnancial liabilies, other fan derivatives, comprise, frade and othes pavables. The mafn parpese of fhese Braucial liabifities s to finance the
Company™s operations. The Company’s principal financial assets inglade Toans, frude. offer rese ubles and cash andd cush equivalents that derve dirsetly frem its operations.

The Compeny is exposed to markat sk, eredir risk and iuidity tisk. The Company's man
Terancial visk aciivities arc governed by sppropriate palicies and procedures and that finas
policics and risk olyoctives,

GmeTt oversees The manzgement of these tisks and ensures that the Conpam's
| tisks are-identificd. meastred ang managed in acensdsnce with the Comgpany’s

i Market risk

Mlaricet risk is the risk thar the fxir value of funoe cask flows of a finuncial instramens will fluciuate tocause of changes in natket prices. Marke! risk comprises two tvpes of sk
inderest rate risk wad ogher price risk. such as squity price risk and eommedisy real-uslate risk,

Tederest rate risk is the Tisk tat the f2ir value or loture cash flows of the Company’s financtal instruments will Mlactuste because of clenues in maiket inderest rates. The
Company i nol exposad to sigmificant risk of chamges i1 macket fnlerest Taze sinee the Company docs not have horrow gs witl: floating interest rates. Therefore tie changes in
the interest rales wili ot have soy significan dnpact on futwre cash flows.

ii. Credit risk

Credit vask is the visk of bass that may arise on omstanding Snancial stroments if a counterpuny defanlt on i1s abligations. The Company”™s exposure (¢ crodid risk arises majihy
fronns brade receivabizs and othar financial assats.

(e financial assets like securily depasits, Toang end Sank deposits wre wastly with emplovees, govermnent bodies and banks and hence, the Company doss 1ot expoend any
credit Hek with respect to these fnanciat assets.

With Tespect 10 1rade receivables, the Company has constituted feans ko review (rads Teveivables on periodic basis and o take necessary miligations, wherever requited. The
Company creales wllvwance for ait unsecurad trade receivables based on Tlifesime expevted credat boss, At the balance shost date, there was no simmitlcant concemralion of credit

risk and expoesure thereon.

Hi Liguidity Risk

T Connpany”s principal sources of Renidity are cash and cast equivalents snd the cash Now that is generated frone operations. The Company belizves 1ha the cash and cash
equivalenis is sufficiant 1 meat its current requiremanis, Aggordingly oo liguidine risk (s perceived.

The break-up of cash and cash equivatents. depasits and fnvestiments is as hefow,
I

Particulars Mareh 31, 2025 March 31,2024
Cash and cash equivalents 74 47
Bank balances other thar Casl and cash equivatents 2560 2,331

The table below summarises the matagity profile of the Company's finaneial liabititics hased on cottraciuzl undisconnizd pavmrants.

Maiurity period March 31, 2025 March 31,2024
Financial Habiliies - Currem
Trade pavablas Willin [ year l46 87
Crher Jinancial liabilities Witlin 1 vear 42 38
Lease Eialilitics Within 1 year 20 -
Financial liabilities - Nor Current
Crehzr financial liabilities Boiween F-3 vears 35 0

Eease Liabilitics Getwoen -5 years 89




Brigade Hospitality Services Limited
Notes to Ind AS financial statements for the year caded March 31, 2025
{All amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs. except as otherwise stated)

32 Fair values
The details of Faiv value mcasurement of Compary’s financial zssetsiabilities are s heiow:
The fair value of the financis! assets and labilities is included at the amount al which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction
vetween willing partics. other than in a forced or liguidation sale. There kave been no transfers between levels during the perind.
The managoment assessed that the carmying values of cash and cash equivalenis, trade receivables, mvesanents, joans, trade payables and otber
finaneial asscts and liabilisics spproximate their faie valucs largely due to the short-term maturitiss and sre repriced freguently.

33 Capital management
The Company™s ohiectives of capilal management is to meximize the shareholder vafue, b asder o mainiin or adjust the capital structure, the
Compavy may zdjust the cetum to shareholdars, issuef tuybuck shares ot self asscts to reduce debt, The Company manages s capital structure and
makes adjustments in lglt of changes in ceonemic congitions and the roquirsmenss of the financia! covenants,
The Company monitors capital USIng & gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by tofal cquity plus net debt a5 bolow:
- Equity includes equity share capital and al] other sQuily components attributable to the Uity halders
- Net Debt includes trads payahies and other financial lisbilitics. less cash and cash cquivalents
—

March 31, 2024 | Mareh 31, 2023

Trade pavables 146 87
Other financial labilities {curent and Aot-cLTent} 77 108
Lease Tighilities 109
Less; Cash and bank balances {2,734} {195}
Net Debt (A) - -
Eguily share capitat 1,000 1,000
Orher equity 2830} 3.795
Equity (B) 3,830 4,795
Equity plus net debt ( C=A + B} 3,850 1,755
Gesring ratic { D=A/C} 0.00% 9.00%
The Company™s capital msnagement, amougst other things. aitns to ackieve thc objective of maximising shavcholders value.
No changes were made in the oblectives, policics or pracesses for managing capital during the corrent and previous vaars,

34 Segment Reporting
The Compary's business actevity falls within a single reportahle sogment, re. hospitality. Hence, there are no additiona! disclosures 1o he provided
under Ind-AS 108 - Segment information witk respect o the smele reportable seeement, ather than those alweady provided in financial statements.
The Company is demiciled in India. The Company's reverye from opcrations from extemal customers retate to hospitality business in India and all
the non-current asseis of the Company are localed in India,

35 Corporate Socizl Responsibility

As per Seetion 135 of ihe Companies Act, 2013 3 CSR Comnittes has been formed by the Company. The Company has contributed to the

approved CSR organisation.

Gross amount required 1o be spent by the Company during the vear
Ammount spent during the vear
Nature of CSR Actilvities

Year ended
31 March 2425
4
14
Promastion and

Year ended
31 March 20124
5

3

Promotion and

development of art development of art
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Brigade Enterprises Limited
Notes (o Standaloae Financial Stateotents for the vear ended Mareh 31, 2025
{AN amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except as otherwise stated}

37 Financial ratias

Note gn Ralios:
1 Current ratio = Cwreent assets / Current Habilities

2 Debt-cquity Ratio = Total Debt / Total cquity
Total Debt = Borrowtngs (current and non-current) and lease liabikities {current and non-current)

3 Debt service coverage ratlo = Famings avaitable for debt servics/ Debt Service.

Eaming for Deht Service — Net Proftt aficr taxes + Non-cash operating expemses like depreciation and other
amorfizations + Interest + other adjustiments Hke loss on sale of Fixed assels ofe.

Debt service = Interest & Lease Payments + Principal Repayments

*Net Profit after tax” means reported amount of “Profit/ (loss) for the period™ and it does not include items of other
contprehiensive income

4 Return on equity rativ — Net Profits after taxes — Preference Dividend / Average Shareholder’s Equity
3 Inventory furnover ratio = Sales / Average Inventory

6 Trade receivables turnover ratio ~ Net Credit Sales ¢ Avgerage Accounts Receivable

7 Trade payables turnover ratio = Net Credit Purchases / Average Trade Payables

8 MNct eapital larnover ratio = Net Sales / Working Capital.

Working Capital = Cumrent Asscts - Cugrent Habibities
9 Nel prodit ratio = Net Profil afier taxes / Net Sales

10 Retuin on capital employed = Earning belore interest and taxes / Capital Employed
Capital Ermployed — Tangible Net Worth = Total Debt + Deforred Tax Liability

1t Retum on investment
ROL = (Current Value of Investment - Cost of investoent) ¢/ Cost of investment

*. Ratio Current Ratio
Numerator Cuerent Assets
Penominator Current Eaabilities
: As ut
tios/ M e .
Ratios/ Measures 31-Mar-25 | 31-Mar-24
Current Asscts (A) 3,297 3,118
Current Liabilitics (B) 921 8§28
Curreat Ratio () =(A) / (B) 3.58 3.76
%Change from previous vear —£.70%
b. Ratie Debt Lquity Ratio
Nurmerator Total Debt {represents currenl and non-current borrowings|
Penominafor Shareholders' equity frepresents total equity]
As at

™ ‘-\ T 5
Ratios! Measares 31-Mar 25 | 31-Mar-24

Total debt (A) -
Shareholder's equily (B) 3850 4,795
Dcbt equity ratie {CC) = (A)Y/ (B) - -
YoChange from previeus vear 0.00%,




Brigade Enterprises Limited
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the vear ended March 31, 2025
{All umonats in Indizn Rupees Lakhs, except as otherwise stated)

c. Ratio ekl service coverage ratio
Numeratar Earnings avaifable for debi service
Denaminator [Deht service

Not Applicable

d. Ratio Retumn on equity |24
Numerator Restated loss after tax
Penominator Average Sharcholder’s Equity

. As at

Ratias/ Measures 31Mar25 | 3163
Profit after tax for the vear (A} 543 TR
Closing shareholder's squity (B} 3,850 4,793
Average shareholder's equity [(opening + closing) 2] 4323 4.410
Return on eqaity [%] (B} = (AW *106 12 56% 17.69%
Y Change from previoos vear -28.98%

The varigtion has arisen duc to the pavment ol additional properly tax being an exceplional transaction. Refer note

27
€. Ratio Imventory tarnover Tatio
Nunterator Cost of goods sofd
Derominator Average inventory
. As at
Ratios/ Measures JIMar2s | 31 Marad
Cost of goods sobd (A} 7ol 839
Closing Taventory (1) 36 33
Average inventory [(opeting + closing) /2] (0 3s 30
Inyeatory turnover ralic (D} = (AM(C) 22.93 27.97
Yo Chuange from previous yvear -18,02%
f. Ratio Frade receivables turnover ratie
Nuomerator Revenue from operations
Denominator Average trade receivables
. As af
Ratios/ Measures 31Mar2s | 31 Mard
Revenue from operations {AY 4,776 4514
Closing Trade Reccivables 154 191
Average trade Receivables [{opening + closing) /2] (8) 192 184
1'rade reccivables turnover ratio (C )= (A)/ (B} 24.83 24.49
% Change from previous year 1.40%
i Ratio Frade payables nrrnover ratio
Numerator Total purchases
Penontinator Average trade pavables
. As at
Ratios/ Measurces FMar2s | 31tar2a
Tatal purchases * (A) 791 871
Closing Trade Pavables 144 87
Average Trade Payables [(opening + closing) /2] (B) 117 a8
Trade pavabies turnover ratio (C) = {A) / {B) 678 8.93
M(‘.hange from previcus year -24.09%




Brirade Enterprises Limited
Notes to Sfandalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2625
(AH amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhbs, except as otherwise stated)

h. Ratio MNet capital fernover ratio
Numerator Fevenue from operations
Denominatar Working capital
Ratios/ Measures As af
31-Mar-25 | 31-Mar-24
Revenue from operations (A} 4776 4,513
Workimg Capital (Current Assets - Current Liabiiites) (I3} 2,376 2,243
Mt capital turnover ratio (C )= (A) {B) 201 241
% Charge from previous vear -0.05%
i. Ratie Net grofll ratio 1%]
Numerator Prodit after tax
Deneminator Revenue from operations
Ratios/ Measures As at
31-Mar-25 | 31-Mar-24
Profit after tax for the vear (A) 343 T80
Revenue from operations (B) 4,776 4514
Net profit %] (C )= (A} / (B} *100 11.37% 17.28%
YoChange from previous vesr -34.21%

The vanation has arisen due to the payment of additional property tax being an exceptional transaction. Reler note

27
i Ratio Return on capital emploved [%6]
Nusterator Faring before interest and taxes
Bepominsior Captal Employed (Teotal equity, Total borrowings and Total lease Habilities)
Ruatios/ Mexsares "’}S at
31-Mar-25 | 31-Mur-24

Profil aller tax for the year (A) 543 T80
Adjustmeats

Add: Tolal 1ax expense (B} 277 303

Add: Finance costs (C) 43 29
Earnings kefore interest and tax (D) = (A} + {B) + () §65 1,114
Tonat equoity (E} 3,830 4,793
Current and Non-current borrowing (T} - -
Current and Non-current lease Hability (G) - -
Dreferred Tax Liabiliy (H) 60 an
Capital Empioved (1} = (E) + (F) + (G} HID 3,910 4,885
Return en capital emploved |97 {H = (D) / {1} *1§{ 223% 23%
% Change from previous year -2.99%

k. Ratio Return oninvesiment [%s]
Numerstor Interest income on fixed deposits + Profit on sale of mvesiments + Income of
investments - Impairment on value of invesment
Denominator Current investment + Non current investments + Fived deposiis with bank
. As at

Ratios/ Measures TIN5 [ 3124
Interest income on fixed deposils {(A) 144 125
Income of investments (B) - - :
Profit on sale of investments (C) - .
fmpairment on value of invesment (T - - :
Net return ¢n invesiments (E ) = (AT 144 125
Current investment (F) - - ;
Non current investments {G) 3 30 |
Fixed deposits with bank (IT) 2560 2331
Capilal Emploved (1) = (F) + (G) + {H} 2,580 2,361
Return on invesiment [%] (1Y =({E)/ ) *108 A.50% 5.29%
%eChange Trom previous vesr -5.01%




Brigade Hospitality Services Limited
Notes to Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements for the vear ended March 31,2025
(All amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except as otherwise stated)

38 Additional Regulatory information required by Schedule 111

vi

viii

xi

Details of Benami Property held
No proceedings have been initiated on or are pending against the Company under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act,
1988 (45 of 1988) and Rules made thereunder,

Relationship with struck off companies
The Company has no transactions with the companies struck off as referred in section 248 of the Act.

Compliance with number of layers of companies
The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under section 2(87) the Companies Act, 2013 read with
Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017,

Undisclosed Income
There is no income surrendered or disclosed as income during the current or previous vear in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961, that has not been recorded in the books of account.

Details of erypto curreney or virtual currency
The Company has not traded or Invested In erypto currency or virtual currency during the current or previous vear.

Revaluation of Property, Plant and Equipment, intangible asset and investment property
The Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment or intangible assets or both during the Current or previous
year.

Title deeds of immovable properties not held in name of the company
The Company does not own any immovable property (other than properties where the company is the lessee and the lease
agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee) which are not held in the name of the Company

Registration of charges or satisfaction of charges with Registrar of Companies
There are no charges or satisfaction of charges which are vet 1o be registered with the Registrar of Companies bevond the
statutory period.

No funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or
kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries™) with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall lend or invest in party identified by or on
behalf of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries).

The Company has not received any fund from any party(s) (Funding Party) with the understanding that the Company shall

whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,”

The company does not have funds borrowed from banks and financial insitutions.

The Company has not been declared as wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution.

As per our report of even date

Place: Bengalurl
Date: April §6, 2025

For Jairam E §. For and on behalf of the board of directors of

igade Hospitality Services Limited

Vineet Verm
Director
DIN: 06362115

t B Manmadkar Gurmeet Sin

CFO & Company Secretary Manager
Membership No: ACS 12444

'\ 200533

Place: Bengaluru
Date: April 16, 2025



